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INTRODUCTION

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the
charitable company for the year ending 31 August 2021, The annual repart serves the purposes of both a
trusteas’ report, and a directors’ report under company law,

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out on pages 38 to 43
of the attached financial statements, and comply with the Charitable Company’s memorandum and articles of
association, the Companies Act 2006 and the requirements of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement
of Recommended Practice, applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (FRS10Z), (SORP 2015),

The Trust currently operates eleven primary, one junior, twenty-four secondary academies and ane alternative
provision centre across the East Midlands, Yorkshire and Humber and Narth East of England.

STRUCTURE, GOVERMAMNCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Trust is a Charitable Company limited by guarantes with ne share capital and an exempt charity, The
Charitable Company's mamorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the
Academy Trust, as incorporated on 19 August 2009, amended on 18 August 2011 and amended again on 17 June
2019,

The Directors act as the Trustees for the charitable activities of Outwood Grange Acadermies Trust Limited and are
also Directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law. The Charitable Company is known as
Outwood Grange Academies Trust (OGAT). In addition, each academy may also be referred to by their individual
name &.g. Dutwood Academy Acklam and the Trust's trading subsidiary, Outwood Grange Services Limited {0G5L)
trades as the Outwood Institute of Education {DIE).

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these sccounts are approved are included in
the Reference and Administrative Details on page 3.

Members” Liability

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cegse to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceasedto be a
member, There are no indemnities awarded to any Members or Trustees,

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Charitable Company are to establish and maintain a number of academies in
accordance with the requirements of the Master Funding Agreement in place with the Education and Skills
Funding Agency ("ESFA”}, advancing education in the United Kingdam for the public benefit,
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Method of Recruitment and Appointment of Trustees

The number of Trustees of the Charitable Company shall not be less than 3 but {unless determined by ordinary
resolution) shall not be subject to any maximum. The articles of association permit the Members to appoint
Trustees through such processes as it may determine and sets out the categorles of Trustees and this includes the
following:

The Chief Executive/Accounting Officer ex-officio

Up to eight Trustees appointed by Members

Up to eight Trustees appointed by the sponsor bady

The Members may appaint co-opted Trustees

The number of Trustees whao are employees of the Charitable Company shall not exceed one third of the total
number of Trustees including the Chief Executive

The Members shall appoint the Trustees and may appoint co-opted Trustees

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend on their existing experience. Where necessary,
induction will provide training on charity and educational, legal and financlal matters. All new Trustees will be
given the opportunity ta have a tour of all the academies and the chance to meet with staff and students.

All Trustees are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans, the governor
handbook and other documents, including the Academy Trust Handbook {ATH) and governor/director guidance
documentation from the Department for Education/Educatian and Skills Funding Agency (DFESESFA) that they will
need to undertake their role as Trustees.

Continuaus Professional Development is undertaken throughout the year to ensure that Trustees are able to
challenge and hold the Executive Board and Executive Team to account. The Board of Trustees have completed
their annual skills audit in order to identify any significant skiils gaps within the Board. The Board has experienced
and professional clerking support in place, as well as access to an independent governance professional to
support and advise the Board on all matters of governance. This role maintains independence from the Executive
Team in order to faciiitate challenge and continuous improvement from the Board.

Organisational Structure

The governance structure consists of five levels: the Members, the Board of Trustees, Academy Councils, the
Executive and the Senior Leadership Teams within each academy. The aim of the governance structure is to
develve responsibility via the Scheme of Delegation and encourage involvement in decision making at all levels.
Terms of Reference for these groups are published alongside the Scheme of Delegation to ensure that at all levels
people are clear about their responsibilities.

The Members meet at least annually to review the performance of the Trust and ensure that the Trustees are
working within the articles of association. The Membaers review the Board skills audit to address any deficiency in
governancea.

The Trustees, by the use of academic results and budgets, monitor and manage risks and make major decisions

about the direction of the Trust, capital expenditure and senior staff appointments.
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The Trustees are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget monitoring.
The Academy Councils act as advisory bodies to the OGAT Board.

The Executive is made up of the: Chief Executive & Accounting Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Executive Principals = Secondary & Primary, three Regional Executive Principals (Secondary),
Executive Principal [Primary), Director of Executive Services, Executive Director of Curriculum, four Associate
Executive Principals, Executive Director of the Outwood Institute of Education and Director of Business Services.

Academy Senior Leadership Teams vary depending on the size of the academy but typically consist of the
following: Principal, Vice Principal{s), Assistant Principals and a further team, appointed under OGAT's ‘Deep
Leadership’ model of Associates. This team also consists of Academy Business Manager, Finance Managers and
the Personal Assistant to the Principal.

The above leaders and managers control the individuzl academies at an executive/principal level implementing
the policies laid down by the Trustees of the Board and reporting back to them. As a group, the senior leaders are
responsible for the authorisation of spending within agreed budgets and the appointment of staff, though the
selection panel for posts to the Executive Board always contain a Trustee - details of the levels of authority can be
found in the Trust's 5cheme of Delegation.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The process for establishing the remuneration of the Executive Team and Principals (Trustees are not
remunerated) is set out in the Trust's Pay Pollicy which has been consulted an with our recognised trade unions as
follows:

8.1 for the Chief Executive, Chief Executive Principals, Executive Principals and Associate Executive Principals,
OGAT will ossign @ seven point Individuol Pay Range having regard to the complexities ond responsibilities
af the past, in particulor the financiol ond resources responsibiiities, the “categony™ of schools/academies
we are supporting ond to market foctors for jobs of o similar stotus/responsibility,

8.2 For o Princlpal, AT will assign a seven point range favng regard to the school group size, CGEAT will
ensure that there is no overlap of salary bands between the Principal ond other leodership posts.

8.3 On appointment the Chief Executive/Chief Executive Principols/Executive Principal/dssociate Executive
Principal/Principal will be appointed on one of the first 4 paints an the range,

8.4 Progression an the range for the Chief Emecutive/Chief Executive Principals/Executive Principal/Principal
will be subfect to outomatic progression, unless [ssues of copability hove been formally identified.

8.5 Where performance is not at the reguired level this will be addressed through OGAT's Performance
Management process and possibly the Copability Procedure.

8.6 Where progression Is withheld, they will be odwized of the reagsons ond given the opportunity to appeal
agafnst the declsion maode. Staff development will also be provided to enable the member of staff to meet
the standards required.

8.7 OGAT will ensure that reasans for setting the ronge at o given level are recorded and that the process for
the determination of the Chief Executive/Chief Executive Principal/Executive Principal/Principals’
salary/grode is falr and transparent.
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The scheme of delegation requires that any pay recommendations for staff earning over the value of Leadership
Scale point 18 must be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Finance and Resources Committes,
Perfarmance management reviews are conducted by the Board for the CEQ and then, through the Scheme of
Delegation, by the CEQ, or delegated, via the scheme of delegation, annually for the senior management
personnel,

Femuneration is a key function of the Trust’s Finance and Resources Committes. This Committes meets regularly
to consider the pay of senior employees and to ensure that pay follows an evidence based process and reflects
individuals' roles and responsibilities. In considering executive pay, the Committee benchmarks against external
data available, including cost per pupil, cost per academy and ratio to lowest paid employee. In 2021/22 the
Finance and Resources Committes will review executive salaries against the “Salary Survey of

Executive Leadership Roles in School Trusts” benchmarking report published in Octaber 2021 by the
Confederation of Schoal Trusts to ensure remuneration levels are appropriate.

Trade union facility time

Facility time publication legislation requires public sector employers with more than 43 full-time equivalent
employees to publish information every year about their usage and spend on trade union facility time. Facility
time is the provision of paid or unpaid time off from an employee’s normal role to undertake trade union duties
and activities as a trade union representative. There is a statutory entitlernent to reasonahble paid time off for
undertaking union duties {but not activities).

The Trust meets its statutory obligations te provide facility time to trade union representatives by pooling
resources with other schools and academies within the various local authorities in which the Trust's academies

are located, to cover the time spent by trade unlon representatives across a number of different employers.

The Trust currently pays into facility time arrangements in the following local authorities:

- Derbyshire & Redcar and Cleveland
&  Sheffield s  Stockton-on-Tees

L Wakefield L Doncaster

s  Middlesbrough s North Lincalnshire

* Mottinghamshire . Narth Yorkshire

* Barnsley

The Trust therefore publishes facility time information as the total cost of contributions to pooled facility time,
expressed as a percentage of the total pay bill for the relevant pariod.

The publication is for the period 1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021, when the Trust spent 0.04% of the total pay bill on

facility time. This information has also been published on the Cabinet Office’s facility time online reporting
sEnice,
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However, for the purposes of the Trust's accounts, the peried from 1 April 2021 — 31 August 2021 must also be
accounted for. As well as paying into pocled facility time arrangements where possible, the Trust also had two
employees who have been provided with time {i.e. full days) to undertake trade union duties. This time is
recharged and paid for by the relevant Trade Unjan,

Relevant union officials

Mumber of employees who were relevant union officials during the Full-time equivalent employee
relevant period number

1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021 28.8

1 April 2021 - 31 August 2021 2B.8

Percentage of time spent on facility time

| Percentage of time | Number of employees
0% 31
1%-50% 1
51%-99% 0
1005 1

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time
Total cost of facility time £53k
Total pay bill £130.0m

The percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time for the year was 0.04%.

Paid trade union activities
The number of hours spent on paid facility time is 1,771, The number of hours spent on paid trade union
activities is nil. The percentage of total paid facility time hours spent on paid TU activities was 0.00%.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

The Trust applies the policies of ‘at-cost’ and full disclosure of any related-party transactions, which are
summarised below. It is the Trust's intention to keep any related-party transactions to a minimum unless they
represent greater value for money than the alternative,

This financial year they consist of £3k in membership fees paid to the Confederation of School Trusts (C5T), As
part of the Trust's commitment to the wider system, the CED is a Director on the Board of Trustees for C5T, This is
a voluntary role for which the CEOQ receives na financial reward, The Trust is 8 paid member of C5T and the
Executive sorutinises the value for money that this membership brings.

During the year the Trust made the following recharges to Outwood Grange Services Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary company with a number of Trustess in commaon, Mo Directors, Trustees or senior management receive
ary additional compensation or a second salary a5 a result of this arrangement. The principal activity of Outwoad
Grange Services Limited was educational support services. During the year £2k (2020 £0k) recharge of costs were
processed from OG5L to OGAT and income from OGSL to OGAT was received of £225k (2020 £277k) and at the
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year-end a balance of £nil (2020 £nil) was due to Outwood Grange Services Limited within trade creditors and
£66K (2020 £7k) was due within debtors,

During the year Outwood Grange Services Limited made a gift aid donation of E66k (2020: £7k) to OGAT with a
£66k gift aid balance outstanding at the year-end {2020 £7k).

Diavid Earnshaw is and Chris Dalzell was a Trustee of Falcon Education Academies Trust. During 2020/21 Outwood
Grange Academies Trust provided education services to Falcon and were remunerated at cost for these services
to the value of £3k,

Twio Trust employees are the anly Trustees of Wakefield South East Training and Enterprise Centre (WSETEC) with
Outwaod Academy Hemsworth being the only partner school, WSETEC is a charity set up to further education in
the Wakefield area by making use of the large facilities leased to it on a peppercorn lease fram the Local
Authority. Previously WSETEC Trustees also included two employees from Minsthorpe Community Collepe, also a
partner school. Outwood Academy Hemsworth has continued the commitment of partner schools to cover
operational costs of WSETEC in order that it remains a going concern, in relation to this and the Trust's use of the
building the Trust paid £15k to WSETEC (2020 £75k),

Engagement with Employees (including disabled persons)

The Trust is committed to ensuring equality of opportunity for all who learn and work here. We respect and value
pasitive differences in race, gender, sexual orlentation, ability, class and age. We promote a curriculum that
encourages children to embrace the challenges of creating a happy and successful adult life. We will enable
pupils to build knowledge that will allow them to make informed decisions about their wellbeing, health and
relationships and to build their self-efficacy. We strive viporously to remove conditions which place people at a
disadvantage and we actively combat bigotry.

The Trust eonsiders all application forms from disabled persons, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the individuals
concerned. Where an existing employee becomes disabled, every effort is made to ensure that employment with
the Trust continues. The Trust’s policy is to provide training, career development and opportunities for
promation, which are, as far as possible, identical to those for other employees.

The Trust works with emploves trade unions and professional aszociations across all our academies and engages
in consultation, as required, to ensure that all aspects of the Charitable Company affecting its employees,
including financial and economic factors, are discussed, conveyed and consulted on with them,

Public Benefit

In exercising its powers and duties the Trust has complied with its duty te have due regard to the Charity
Commission’s guidance on Public Benefit. The main public benefit delivered by the Trust is the provision of a high
guality of education to its students. This has been evidenced through the results achieved and feedback from
external assessments,
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OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objects and aims

The principal object and activity of the Trust is to advance education in the UK for the public benefit, in particular
by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing its academies, offering 2 broad curriculum
with strong emphasis on the specified specialisms of those academies. In setting our objectives and planning our
activities, the Trustees have given careful consideration to the Charity Commission's general guidance on public
benefit,

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

Objectives:
The objectives and aims are set out balow:
= Toprogress on the journey towards all OGAT academies being recognised as ‘Outstanding’ by Ofsted;
* Toensure that all academies achieve excellent examination results (above national averages);
* Tomake strides towards a self-assessment of financial management and governance of ‘Outstanding’;
* To positively influence the lives and achievement of more young people through the measured and
steady growth of the Trust, bringing mare academies into the Family of Schools;
* Toensure that the Trust is able to generate a positive financial outturn at the end of each financial year
thraugh efficient and effective curriculum led financial planning; and
* To progress against each of the areas identified in the Trust's and the Regional Sustained Improvement
Pilans with a particular emphasis of embedding our Curriculum and then, as also set out in the Ofsted
summary Evaluation of the Trust: reducing pupil absence and persistent absence, continuing to further
improve the outcomes for disadvantaged pupils and reducing the behaviours which lead to student fived
term exclusions [suspensions).

As a high performing Multi-Academy Trust we embrace the opportunity to ensure that all children, irrespective of
their starting point, receive an excellent education. We relish the opportunity to be part of the much needed
regeneration of the areas we work in. To achieve this aim, staff within OGAT have three values in common. They:

1. put ‘students first": they care deeply about children;

2. strive to be experts in their respective fields; and

3. are gbsessive about attalning the highest standards,

As a Multi-Academy Trust we want to be known for placing “Students first: raising standards and transforming
lives”.

Strategies:
Our Trust understands that there are five things we need to constantly maintain to be a successful Multi-Academy
Trust:

1. Avision and set of values which holds us all to account;

2. A model for school improvement which is both systematic and consistent across our Trust: creating a
collaborative culture, We place efficacy at the heart of our decision-making;

3. A coherent curriculum which is both fit for purpose academically and financially;

4. Arecognition and understanding that we work within accountability frameworks: Academy Trust Handbook
{Academies Financial Handbook in the year 2020/21), National Schools Commissioner/Regional Schools
Commissioner, Ofsted, Department for Education, Education and Skills Funding Agency etc. and that we
must adhere to the highest standards of public office (Nolan principles); and

5. Ascheme of delegation which enables respansibility to sit with those who are accountable.
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The Outwood transformative leadership:
All of the strands of transformation are delivered concurrently: each relies upon the others to facilitate school
improvement, These strands are:
1. Leadership with vision and efficacy
Quality in the classroom
Currlculurn design
Meonitoring and intervention
Systems and policies
Targeted professicnal development
Praise culture for staff and students

ot e T

Systematic school improvement within OGAT is achieved through the shared implementation of this
transformation model. We have conseientiously developed an efficacious model that has ‘tight’ systems which
run “deeply” through our Trust with our scheme of delegation as the enabling mechanism. This methodology
provides comfort to our academies and their principals as we all have a shared understanding of our model and
carparate responsibility to develop the entire Trust: we are a family of schoaols,

Activities:

Three new academies joined the Trust in the Academic year 2020/21: Outwood Academy Hasland Hall, Outwood
Primary Academy Alne and Outwood Primary Academy Woodlands and the Trust opened its first Free School,
Dutdoor Academy Riverside. The Trust has made good use of an empty building at Normanby to create our first
Altermative Provision centre: Outwood Alternative Provision, Eston which formally registered as an independent
school. The Trust also undertock school improvement work to support Haydock High School and Hindley High
School, both of whom are expected to be sponsored on 1st January 2022,

Dutwood Grange Academies Trust formally partnered with Harris Federation, Oasis Community Learning and Star
Academies in the creation of a separate charitable company limited by guarantee, the School-Led Davelopment
Trust (SLDT). SLDT is working to develop a nationwide teacher development scheme which covers the ‘golden
thread’ from ECF through ta MLE.
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STRATEGIC REPORT
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMAMCE

The academic year 2020/21 again saw the Coronavirus pandemic disrupting all schools naticnwide throughout
the year. Extermal examinations were again cancefled by the governmant with students’ prades at key stage 4 and
5 being issued by Teacher Assessed Grades (TAGs). The highly disrupted year along with very high levels of the
virus affecting both staff and students along with many more having to isolate themselves as they were identified
as ‘close contacts’ obviously impacted on attendance and persistent absence rates too.

The Trust is making excellent progress in its desire to have all academies good or better with only one academy
less than good. From their predecessor Ofsted grade, every academy has improved their grade {unless already
Outstanding or Good). No Ofsted inspections took place in the academic year 2020/21.

Attendance showed signs of significant improvement until the Coronavirus pandemic began to affect attendance
rates in the late Autumn term. The Spring term saw a national lockdown which incleded schoals returning to
online teaching except for key groups. This disruption renders data on attendance non-comparable to previous
years. It continues ta be a focus of the Trust to improve rates of attendance and reduce persistent absenca; it is
even more of an imperative now given the disruption children have had to their schooling that they attend
regularly. At the start of 2021/22, the rates of attendance, even in highly affected Covid areas, are at or above
the daily attendance rates reported nationally,

A further 12 academies were awarded Inclusion Quality Marks (IQM) for their practice and 15 acadernies were
recognised for their Mental Health practice (Carnegie Mental Health Awards - ChMHA) during the year. In total,
the trust has 19 QM recognised schools now with 13 obtaining Centre of Excellence status and 21 CMHA with 7
obtaining Gold status, It is a target to attain these awards in all academies.

The Trust grew by two secondary academies and two primary academies. There are a number of academies due
to join the Trustin 2021/22. The Secondary academies showed yet another year of significant pupil number
growth increasing by 362 students year on year (like for like comparison) and by 1,250 pupils including the new
acadermy. Primaries grew by 124 pupils, like for like and by a total of 653 pupils including the new academies.
Post 16 grew significantly: an additional 172 students attended our centres. The Board canslders popularity with
parents to be one of its key indicators for success,

The Trust also considers that further reducing suspensions at secondary and continuing to increase the outcomes
of disadvantaged children remain key areas for improvement: both of these areas saw significant improvement in
2020/21 although due to the disruption to the continuity of on-site attendance due to the Coronavirus pandemic
and the submissicn of Teacher Assessed Grades (TAGs), it Is not pessible to make direct comparison to previous
years' data.

The Trust has outlined our strategic priorities in our three-year improvermnent plan, One Outwood. The plan is
available to the general public via the Trust or academy websites,
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KEY PERFORMAMCE INDICATORS

Becondary Ofsled Grade pre Current Ofsed T Bascs Basics | Aftainment | [Attendance | Unauthorised
Academies OGAT (CHd#) (B4/5+] i Alsence
Cutwood Grange | Owisianding Oulstanding E3.6% BT.5% 53.07 B0.65% 2.2T%
Adeack [Spesial Massumes Requires Impravernent B5.E% 49. 7% 4563 BE.E4% 4.58%
Ripon |Satistactony Outstanding 70.0% 80.2% 51.19 B7.00% LEI%
|Pomana |5 pecial Measures Cutstanding BYB% 5, 5% 5208 BB T1% £ 50%
Vailey inadequate Cutstanding B3.0% §9.4% 55 49 a2d2% | 2.65%
Srumiyy Special Measures Goad T2.0% 57 0% 4510 BN | 4d4Th
Agiklam Spectal Measures Good £6.0% 45.7% 45.80 B4 55% 5.33%
ity Special Measurms Goad T3.0% 54.5% 4011 B813% | B.48%
|Faxhils Spetial Measures Good Td 5% 54.7% 2523 @0 07w 3.50%
|Mewbola Special Measures Good T4.7% 54.9% 4879 BT.BA% | 2Bi%
|Bydaes Special Measures Cutstanding 91.8% T4 1% 861 o43% | 1E8%
|shafan [Special Measures Good 86.5% 43.5% 47.08 BETEN | 421N
Crmeshy Special Measures Good S2.1% 358% 41.43 #.90% | 862%
Carltan Good Seed 85.4% 41.0% 4102 B5EE% | 4B1%
[oanum Regsires Improvement | Good 70.2% 50.0% 47.45 85.81% 7,104
’ghmmm Rogeares impromment  [Good 63.5% 34.4% 43.95 BA.95% 412%
Redear Requires Impromment | waiting Inspechan &7 8% 41 B 47.53 B 62% 3. 56%
[Easingwoid Special Measures Awaiting Inspection B 5% B 5% 5778 52.11% 1.17%
|Ermeston Frequres Improvement | Awsiting Inspection 75.3% 56.7% 40,81 BB.IT% 271%
|Hesmzwann Retuires Improwement | Awaiting Inspection | 87.5% 44 6% 46,10 8.0% 3,75%
{city Fisids Cutstanding Outstanding 75.0% 54.7% 47.13 B9.59% 3.02%
|Memanty Saecial Measures Avasitng hspectian 58.1% 6 8% 40,58 B4, 0dr%5 B.09%
(Riverside ik Avaiing bsgection - - 3 85.36% 4,597,
Hasland Hall Special Measunes Awiting lnspection Ti5% 46.3% 48,02 B0.19% 1.65%
|irin--r~_r Ofsted Grade pre Current Ofsted WA | 201879 | 201819 | [Amendance |Unauthonised
bcademies _ OEAT Reading Wriing | Maths | Absence
{Cedger Lane Satisfachary Culsianding 77.0% 01.0% o1 0% Po— 0.55%
Firkhamgate Specisl Measires Cuisiading T4.0% B9 0% BT 0% BoTm | 141%
Cothouse Gate | Good Gaed aTo% 5T0% 58.0% w79% | DEaw
Diarfield Faquires Improvement | Gacd T OE0N | 85w B0% || sszim | 148%
|Litieworih Grange |Requims Improvement | Good B3.0% 87 0% B4 0% MEE% | 240%
Geeysions Special Measures Auwailing mspection £i5.0% 75.0% 55.0% DdEEY | 10d4%
Bell Lane Good Awaiting Inspoction 0% BT 0% 55 0% BT | DB
Fark Hil Requires Improvement | Awalling Inspeciics 500 E4. 04 Bi0% || #.6T% 2 85%
Neasiead Green | Requires Improvement | Availing Inspaction ¥5.0% BA 0% Ta0% %5 22% 0.80%
Brumby Juniors | Special Measunes Avaailing nspeciicn 65.0% B, 0% Ta0% || g498% 184%
Waodiands Specia Measunes Awailing Inspeciicn B0.47% 3455
Alne Special heasumes Awvailing nspeciicn g7 07 0935,
Motes.

Acadamis achigvamand for Primary scademves in 2018719 provided due fo no sxfemal assesmaerd in 201820 or 202031
Attendance dala impactad by Covid T8 Sae comvmentary above for further dafail
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ACADEMY CONTENT

Secondary Academies| Joining | Yearswith [ URN |School ID| NLE Date | Conversion | Capacity |PAN
Date Trust Route
Outwood Grange /%2008 12 135061 | 36476005 | 1/2/2000 | Comverted | 2200 | 350
Adwick 1/H2003 12 135063 | 371/6007 | 1/6/2008 | Sponsor 1300 | 210
Ripon 1972011 10 137412 | 815/4203 Comerted 782 | 150
Partland 1062012 0 138248 | 801/4D12 | /22011 | Sponsor 1720 | 300
Vallay 1/6/2012 10 138247 | 801/4011 | 162011 Sponsor 1700 | 300
Brumby V42013 g 138277 | B13/4001 | V2012 | Sponsor BB0 [ 172
Ackham 1192013 B 130623 | B05/4002 | 1/4/2012 | Sponsor 1350 | 240
City 1/1/2014 8 140415 | 373/4008 | /#2012 | Sponsor 1200 | 240
[Foxhilis 112014 7 137004 | B13/4076 | 1/11/2013 | Rebrokered | 750 | 150
Newbokd 1/1/2015 7 141377 | B304004 | 1/&/2014 | Sponsor 1138 | 180
Bydales RN 7 141399 | B07/4004 | 1/6/2014 | Sponsor BOO | 150
Shafion 1A2015 7 139211| 3704002 | 1/6r2014 | Sponsor 1500 | 270
Omesky /32015 8 138711 B0G/M4122 Sponsor B25 | 18D
Carlten 1VE2016 & 138210 3704002 | 182014 Sponsor 1100 | 220
Danum 1192016 5 143538 | 37174007 | 20/6/2016 | Rebrokered | 1026 | 240
Bishopsgarth 11112016 5 143146 | BOB/AD07 | 20/E/2016 | Sponsor g0z | 120
Redcar 11072017 4 145188 | BO7/4010 | 1/%2015 | Rebrokered | 882 | 150
Easingwaold 1472018 4 144576 | 8154006 | 26/6/2017 | Sponsor 1378 | 210
Freesion 1ISZ018 4 145037 | 384/4013 Rebrokered | 1080 | 210
Hemsworth 152018 4 145538 | 384/4014 Rebrokersd | 1632 | 270
City Fields 1772018 3 136354 | 384/4009 Rebrokered | 750 | 150
Normanby HEFE 2 147544 | 807/4013 | 1/7/2018 | Rebrokered | 1200 | 150
Riverside 1IN2020 1 147848 | B06/4003 Frez School | 1050 | 210
Hasland Hall 132021 1 143337 | 830/4014 |20411/2020| Sponsor 840 | 180
Primary Academies | Joining | Yearswith | URN |School ID| NLE Date | Conversion | Capacity | PAN|
Date Trust Route
Ledger Lane 11212012 g 135108 | 3B4/2080 | 1/5/2012 | Sponsor 300 60
Kirkramgate 132013 8 138080 38472003 | 142012 Spansar 185 30
Lofthouse Gate 1792013 a 140085 | 3B4/2078 | 41385 Converted 452 &0
Darfield 1042016 [ 143840 | 37042048 Rebrokered | 210 30
Littieworih Grange 174120186 8 143839 | 370/2044 Rebrokered | 420 B0
Greystone 17172018 4 1454711 | B15/2008 | 26/8/2017 Sponsar 174 30
Bell Lane 1412018 4 145841 | 384/2036 Rebrokered | 270 45 |
Park Hil 17412018 4 145339 [ 384/2030 Rebrokered | 360 B0
Newstead Gresn /52018 4 145340 | 384/2031 Rebrokered | 262 a0
Brumby Juniors 1/9/2018 3 146267 | B13/2008 | 462018 | Sponsor 480 | 120
Woodlands 22021 1 1483838 | 371/2020 | 22020 Sponsor 472 B0
Alne 142021 7 148330 | B15/2022 Sponsor 187 21
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Going Concern

After making appropriate enguiries, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies. In arriving at this position the Trustees have
considered the impact of Covid-19. Whilst this is the source of ongoing disruption this will not materially impact
the judgement of going concern due to the certainty of funding and the Trust's revenue reserves.

Promoting Success of the Company

The objects of the Trust are to advance, for the public benefit, education in the United Kingdom, by establishing,
developing and managing Academies. Under section 172(1){a) to {f) of the Companies Act 2006, Members and
Trustees of OGAT always seek to act in a way most likely to promate the success of DGAT, and in doing 50 have
regard to;

® The short and long term consequences of decision making by selecting appropriate KPIs to monitor and
giving due consideration to the Trust’s risk management strategy at all times, This includes identifying
pertinent risks and correspending risk management in deeision making. These approaches are described
in more detail in the Governance and Strategic Report

® The interests of the Trust's employees which the Trust has veluntarily protected by applying Teachers’
Pay and Conditions and National Joint Council pay and conditions to all Teachers and Support Staff
respectively. The Trust has also taken steps to reduce the Gender pay gap and ensure fair pay across all
support staff by conducting a job evaluation exercise, This was completed In August 2020 and was only
possible due to the Trust's excellent relationship with Unison and GMBE and participation in the NJCC. The
Trust remains committed to reducing worklead and is investing in technology such as G-Suite to help
achieve this aim. For a second year, all teacher vacancies for September 2021 were filled with record
numbers of applications for many pasts

& The need to foster the Trust's relaticnships with parents, students and suppliers. The Trust does not take
the positive relationship it enjoys with its students and parents for granted but is nonetheless very
encouraged by the increasing student numbers which result from this. The impact of this can be seen in
the Strategic Report. The Trust and its academies actively seek to engage with the wider community by
social media, Student Voice and parent surveys which have all become even mare critical in the era of
Covid-19. The Trust has also developed strategic relationships with suppliers such as YPO {Yorkshire
Purchasing Organisation) to improve the value for meney the Trust obtains in its purchasing and develop
procurement practice for the wider sector.

& In2020/21 the Trust also entered into contract variations with key suppliers that were placed at risk
during the Covid-19 disruption. This was carrled aut in line with guidelines from the DfE and PPN 02/20
and PPN 0420 to ensure business continuity

& The impact of the Trust's operations on the community. This is most evident in the improverment in
educational outcomes that the Trust provides but also in the provision of facilities for community use and
environmental initiathves. In August 2021 the Trust procured a fully managed lattings service with the
intention of increasing the availability of its facilities for community use.

® The Trust's reputation for high standards. These extend to both educational outcomes and the financial
security and assuredness that is derived from a strong governance and a sound system of internal
cantrals

* The need to treat staff and students fairly across the Trust. With respect to staff this is ensured by
consistent appreach to pay, benefits and performance which are supparted by robust palicies to protect
staff such as whistleblowing and grievances. The Trust, through both academy practice and in particular
the DIE, invests very heavily in professional development recognising that developing staff and providing
opportunity for advancement along with provision of geod working conditions are key to staff retention.
The Trust prides itself an achigving the best outcomes for all students and ensures that students have fair
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access Lo the Trust’s schools by adopting the local authority admissions criteria for all academbes. As a
System Trust, the Trustees and Executives take seriously their responsibilities to not only advance
education within the Trust but also the wider system,

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial report for the year

The Trust's ongoing income is predominantly from the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants. The use of these
grants is restricted to the provision of education. In the year, total income increased to £196.5m, up £28.7m from
2019/20. The increase is primarily driven by the addition of Qutwood Academy Hasland Hall, Outwood Primary
Acaderny Alne and Outwood Primary Academy Woodlands,

During the year ended 31 August 2021, total expenditure of £175.0m was covered by recurrent grant funding
together with other incoming resources. The excess of income over expenditure for the year was £21.5m (2020:
£8.3m}. The Trust generated £3.4m in cash from its operating activities {2020: £3.0m) and held a total of £33.1m
in cash at 31 August 2021. In future years operating cash is expected to remain positive as the Trust benefits from
increasing pupll numbers. The in-year surplus, including the £1.4m of restricted revenue reserves spent on capital
projects [2020: £4.6m}, was £9.1m (2020: 2,0m). This £9.1m represents the movement on restricted general and
unrestricted reserves excluding pension reserve. The operating surplus of the Trust, excluding asset and pension
adjustments, was £9.8m. The restricted and unrestricted reserves, excluding pension reserves, as at 31 August
2021 were £31.9m (2020: £22.8m),

Covid-19 drove aperational savings from the national restrictions on pupils attending school in the spring and
summer aof 201%/20. This position did not reverse as anticipated in 2020/21 due to the ongoing pandemic which
led to further restrictions on students attending schools, particularly during the national lockdown between
lanuary and March, Operational savings during these periods and one off grants more than offset increased costs
for particular activities such as Covid Catch-up, Summer Schools, Mass Testing and supply teacher costs in the
autumn term.

At 31 August 2021, the net book value of tangible fixed assets was E238m, up £22m from 2020, This movement
comprises £16m in donated assets, £7m of net depreciation and £13m In net additions. Tha latter is primarity
drivan by expanditure on the following projects: Hemsworth New build, Greystone school improvements,
Crrmesby school improvements, Easingwold continued ME&E and sports hall, Worksop P16 expansion, Riverside
equipment, Carltan ICT suite improvements, Bydales PE changing rooms along with various site works for health
and safety and safeguarding. The Trust has also continued its rolling programme of investing in IT software and
hardware to the cost of £2.5m.

The deficits in the Local Government Pension Schemes (LGPS) are recognised on the Balance Sheet in accordance
with the provisions of FRS102. It s noted that the pension lisbility increased from £78.5m to £99.9m. This is due
to £1.5m pension liabilities transferring with Outwood Academy Hasland Hall, Outwood Primary Academy
Weodlands and Alne and a worsening position in every scheme due to the changes in assumptions applied by the
actuary — increase in discount rate, increase in CPI, and increase in salary rises, along with changes in the
assumptions applied to the life expectancy improvement rates,

Reserves policy

The policy of the Trust is to carry forward a prudent level of resources designed to meet the long term cyclical
needs of facilities and equipment renewal and any other unforeseen contingencies. Individual academies are
expected to produce at least breakeven budgets each year, but the Trust also recognises that this Is not feasible in
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some cases where academieas have low pupil numbers, lower funding levels or have recently joined the Trust
having been in difficult circumstances and require additional resources. In these cases, the Trust supports those
academies in deficit and works with them to return the academy to a surplus position. Reserves of the Trust are
pocled for the benefit of the Trust as a whole and the consclidated Trust budget is set to at least break even. The
current forecast for the next three years, based on our current delivery model, shows an overall surplus position
in each year,

Restricted General Reserves

Restricted Income Funds must be spent by the Trust on the provision of education. At 31 August 2021 these funds
totalled £18.7m excluding Pension Reserves which the Trust Board intends to use to fund capital investrment in
the Trust’s schools buildings and infrastructure. Transfers from the Restricted Income Eund to the Flxed Assets
Reserves will be reflected annually as these projects are completed.

Included in Restricted General Reserves is the Pension Liability of £{99.9)m, giving a net deficit on Restricted
General Reserves of £(81.3)m. Although the Pension Reserve |s a significant Habllity this is accounted for under
FR517 and does not mean that an immediate liability is due. Where cash flow and "free reserves” may be
impacted is In the emplayer pension contribution rates that are set fram future triennial pension valuations. The
Trust has budgeted for any increases in employer pension contributions to 2022/23, when the next valuations are
due,

Unrestricted Reserves

Unrestricted Income Funds are those funds that the Trust can spand how they believe appropriate within the
aims and objectives of the Trust. The visian of the Trust is "Students first; raising standards and transforming
lives™ and so any reserves are always invested with this objective in mind. As at the year ended 31 Auogust 2021,
the unrestricted reserves of the Trust are £13.2m, The combined reserves of the Trust for restricted income
funds and Unrestricted Income Funds are £31.9m. In line with its reserves policy the Trust has assessed it
requires £10.5m contingency to fund any deficits, allow for any unforeseen conditions and sustain the Trust's
effective delivery model.

The Trust has adopted the DfE's recommended reserves level and aims to hald contingency reserves of between
E7.9m and £10.5m (equivalent to 3 to 4 week's salary costs). Relative to the size of the Trust this is a lean position
of £0.2m to £0.3m per school which the Trustees will flex between the lower and upper limits to respond to the
educational needs of students. All reserves in excess of this contingency reserve level are allocated to revenue or
capital projects in line with the Trust's charitable objects. In 2021/22 and beyond the Trust plans to spend a
further £1.4m on existing contractually committed capital projects and has allocated £16m to further capital
projects and £4m to revenue projects. The revenue prajects are focused on helping students’ catch-up following
the disruption of the pandemic and the capital prajects are primarily to address a legacy of underinvestment prior
to OGAT's sponsorship and ensure all school buildings are fit for purpose.

Investment Palicy
The general policy objective is to invest the surplus funds prudently and not expose the Trust to an inappropriate
level of risk. The investment priorities are:

»  Security of the invested capital;

*  Liguidity of the invested capital; and, commensurate with security and lguidity

*  Anoptimal return on those investments,
This prohibits the Trust taking on capital risk i.e. investing in equities, but does allow the Trust to make fixed term
deposits with banks,
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Trustees regularly assass the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, in particular those relating to the
specific teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the Trust, and its finances., Trustees have
identified the risk appetite for each stratepic risk which is then reflected in the risk management strategy of the
operational risks that they comprise of. The strategic risks are identified as:

*  Standards

v Safeguarding

*  Govermance

*= Capability and Capacity {This is with respect to both human and financial resocurces)

¢ Political and External Erwironment

s Arademy Spansorship/Conversion

The Trustees have implemented a number of systems to assess risks that the Trust faces, especially in the
operational areas (e.g. in relation to teaching, behaviour, health and safety, bullying and school trips) and in
relation to the contral of finance, There are systems in place to minimise risks, including aperational procedures
{e.g. vetting of new staff and wisitars, supervision of school grounds) and internal financial controls, As part of its
risk management strategy the Trust currently uses the ‘Risk Protection Arrangements’ (RPA) which is specifically
designed for academies as an alternative to commercial insurance to transfer some risks. Under RPA, the LUK
Government covers the losses instead of commercial insurance. After conversion, all new academies joining the
Trust will use RPA as soon as their existing insurance arrangements come to an end, The Trust has an effective
system of internal financial controls and this is explained in more detail on pages 24 - 25.

The LGPS [Local Governmient Pension Scheme) is a defined benafit pension scheme and has a deficit on the
balance sheet of the Trust of £99.9m. The pension deficit is typlcal of the sector and reflective of the assurmptions
applied by our actuaries Pensions Watch. The cash impact of this is determined every three years when each LGPS
completes its triennial valuation and sets the contribution rates for the next three years, The Trust has opted not
to pool all employees into one LGRS as a risk mitigation strategy.

Fundralsing

The Trust only participates in low level fundraising. The purpose of this is not to fund the Trust's core provision of
education but support related activities and charities. This fundraising does not involve any professional
fundraisers and is only based on voluntary donations from the Trust's stakehaldess. As the Trust only participates
in low levels of fundraising, Covid-19 has had little impact on this.
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reparting

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use | 1 September 2020 to 31 1 September 2019 to 31
data August 2021 Bugust 2020
Energy consumption breakdown (kWh):

 gas 26,113,083 26,315,641
» glectricity 12,279,657 12,309,581
* transport fuel 524,752 933,728
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e:

Gas consumption 4,974 4,839
Crwned transport = mini-buses 1 B

Total scope 1 4,975 4,847
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e;

Purchased electricity 3,448 2,870
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes COZe:

Business travel in employee owned vehicles 170 293

Total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e: 8,593 E,010
Intensity ratio:

Tonnes COZe per pupil 0.326 0.324

Quantification and Reporting Methodology:

The Trust has followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines, The Trust has also

used the GHG Reporting Protocol = Corporate Standard and the 2020 UK Government’s Conversion Factars for
Company Reporting. The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per
pupil, the recommended ratio for the sector. Both periods reported have been significantiy affected by the
pandemic and do not provide a stable base line for reporting due to the impact of school dosures and increasing
wentilation as contral measures.

Measures taken to improve energy efficiency:

The Trust has approved an Environmental Sustainability Policy that requires all projects of the Trust, including
capltal projects, to consider how they can reduce our negative impact on the environment. The trust has
maintained a policy of video conferencing, in lieu of travel, wherever possibie and is including criteria in all tormal
tenders that suppliers must demonstrate the actions they are taking to reduce carbon emissions.
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PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS

As a major sponsor of academies, OGAT will continue to develop its family of academies in order to continue to
support children, some of whom are vulnerable. Our objectives are set out on page 10, In summary, we aim to
provice the highest educational opportunities for all children as well as providing professional development for all
teaching and support staff so that our academies continue to be self-developing and self-supporting in the future.
Capacity building in advance of need is a big part of our drive; our willingness to engage with outside partners and
with new and innovative practices will help us to continue to secure the high levels of success already achieved.
The past performance of the Trust gives Trustees reasonable assurance for future growth however, all new
projects will come with a full business case including a detailed due diligence, Decisions on growth therefore will
be made an a case by case basis,

Plans for the future include:

s Delivering the Trust's improvement plan - One Outwood 2021-2024 is avallable on the Trust website

& Mitigating as much as possible the disruption caused to student learning during the pandemic - this
includes the continued development of technological solutions to learning and keeping parents informed
about their child's progress

& Further developing a new regional hub through expansion to sponser schools in the North West

® Developing a strong teacher training programme in partnership with other strong Trusts

* Ensuring that all Ofsted actions from the Trust Summary Evaluation and component academy inspections
are acted upon

AUDITORS
In 50 far as the Trustees are aware;
* there is no relevant audit information of which the Charitable Company's auditor is unaware; and
# the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant

audit Information and to estabfish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Saffery Champness LLP have expressed their willingness to remain in office as auditors to the Trust.

APPROVAL

Trustees report, incorporating a strategic report, approved by order of the Board of Trustees as company Trustees
on 13 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Moot .

M David Earnshaw, o E—— =

Chair of Trustees
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SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall respansibility for ensuring that Outwood Grange Academies Trust
has an effective and appropriate system of contral, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of faillure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss,

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive, as Accounting Officer,
for ensuring financial controls confarm with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management
and in accordance with the requirements and responsibiiities assigned to it in the funding agreement betwsen
Cutwaood Grange Academies Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for
reparting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control,

GOVERMNANCE

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the
Statement of Trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trustees held 8 meetings during the year, of these 7 were
Ordinary General Meetings and1 was an Extraordinary Meeting considering the Trust's S-year Strategic Plan.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

' Trustee Meetings | Outofa
attended possible
Mr David Earnshaw, CBE, Chair of Trustees B B
Mirs Sue Hague, Vice Chair of Trustees 7 g
Mr Roland Harden, Trustee ] ]
Mr Ralph Pickles, Trustes B ]
mir Martyn Oliver, Ex Officio Trustee and Chief Executive/dccounting B B
Officer
Mr Christopher Dalzell, Trustee | 7 a8

The composition of the Board of Trustees did not change during 2020/21 but Jamie Allison was added as a
Member to further strengthen independence between the Trustees and Members, The Board's effectiveness was
reviewed In an Internal Audit on governance in 2017,/18 and since then the Board has welcomed veluntary
assessments of the Trust, and its governance, in the form of a Summary MAT Evaluation conducted by Ofsted and
a Data Protection Audit conducted by the Information Commissioner's Office, both in 2009, The Board was
pleased with the findings of both assessments, The Board has a continuous improvement mind-set which includes
continuing to refine a comprehensive set of dashboards which allow the Board to manage and challenge the
Executive robustly and on an exceptional basis. The Board is also mindful of skill gaps and invests in training and
expert advice accordingly. Most recently the Board has undertaken training on Student Mentzal Health and
Wellbeing to improve its knowledge and awareness.

Ofsted Summary evaluation of Outwood Grange Academies Trust June 2019;

“A sophisticated system is in ploce within the Trust to capture timely information which covers all aspects of o
school's performance. This is routinely used by principals and acodemy councils to monitor and report on the
school's successes and priorities. Trustees, the CEOQ and executive leaders make effective use of this information an

a very regular basis to challenge leaders and to deploy bespoke support to address the needs of each school.”

“Trustees set a clear direction for the work of the executive leaders and this has been underpinned by sound,
strategic decisions to ensure that the Trust’s growth hos been sustainable,”

Page 21 of 77




The Finance and General Purposes Committes is a subcommittes of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to
review the financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and
expenditure programmes;

» setting targets to measure financial and other performance

»  clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital Investrment] guidelines

* delegation of authority and segregation of duties

* seiting the remuneration of senior staff

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings Attended Out of a possible
Mirs Sue Hague, Trustes 4 4
Mr Christopher Dalzell, Trustee 4 4

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and appointed RSM UK Risk
Assurance Services LLP as internal auditor.

The internal auditor’s role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the
Trust's financial and other systems. The internal auditor normally reports to the Board of Trustees three times a
year, through the Audit Committee, on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board
of Trustees’ financial responsibilities,

The internal auditor has delivered their schedule of work as planned, highlighting a number of miner control
issues which are being addressed as necessary.

The Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose s to review the work
undertaken by the imternal and external auditors and to direct them to reviewing areas that are considered to be
higher risk. It is also responsible for reviewing the main risks of the Trust as a whole and maintaining and
reviewing a risk register,

Internal audit reports are produced with recommended actions for management to carry aut, which the Audit
Committes monitors and reviews.

The external auditors prepare a managemaent letter and regularity assurance report which again is reviewed by
the Audit Committee and any recommendations implemented by management,

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustee Meetings Attended Out of a possible
Mr Ralph Pickles, Trustea 3 3
Mr Roland Harden, Trustee 1 3
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REWIEW OF VALUE FOR MOMEY

As accounting officer, the CEOQ has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value In the
use of public resources, The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received,

The accounting officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the
Academy Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

® Continued focus on staffing and in particular CLFP (Curriculum Led Financial Planning) metrics as part of
the rolling planning cycle has continued to serve the Trust well. In 2020/21 this strategic planning enabled
the Trust ta respond to the disruption caused by Covid-19. This included a substantial over-recruiimeant to
provide intervention and cover more cost effectively than relying on supply agencies and with the langer
term benefit of providing future classrosm teachers
o The Trust's CLFP metrics for 2020/21 were 8.5% curriculum bonus and 0.77 teaching staff contact

ratio, This reflected the smaller group sizes and increased staffing compared ta 2019/20 when the
curriculum bonus was 7.5% and the teaching staff contact ratio was 0.78

76% of the Trust's income was spent on staffing. Of this 51% was spent on teaching staffing and
25% on support staffing

& Adjusting the Trust's procurement strategy to drive additional competition within the market to generate
cost savings and additional value. For the first time this includes creating flexible OGAT specific
frameworks alongside the use of open competition and DfE approved frameworks. All tenders now
include criteria and guality questions on social value to ensure contracts dellver social, econamic and
environrmental benefits for the public and in particular the communities we serve

]

10% sawving secured on the procurement of key safeguarding software, utilising the Trusts
economies of scale and aligning all of the Trusts expiry date for effective contract management
&% saving for Parents/Carers and the Trust In the procurement of school uniform along with the
environmental benefits of the uniform being made from sustainable, recycled materials, In
addition the supplier will recondition 2™ hand uniform and make this available at a lower cost to
parents

23% saving in the hourly rate of mechanical and electrical engineers through the creation of
OGAT's Mechanical and Electrical services framework, Savings will vary throughout the lifetime of
this 4 year framework, based on maintenance, repairs and any capital bids. This framework
secures additional value in forms of project sponsarship, student incentives, the offer of work
placements and tool box talks

A price hold and 3 45% saving against market rates for the Trust's text messaging service. In
addition this included social value elements such as supporting careers days and fairs and using
the ‘Kickstart Scheme’ to create job opportunities

A slight increase in Broadband costs but for double the connection speed and a saving of 50%
against market pricing

A 9% saving on HE&S advisory services plus free first aid training for students across the trust and
charitable donations

A 5% saving on telephony provision and additionzal social walue secured in the form of local
cemmunity sponsorship, prizes such as iPads for student incentives, local recruitment and
sustainability throughout the supply chain

The establishment of a catering Framework for the provision of catering service. Compared to
incumbent contracts this secures additional income, schoal sponsarships in fulfifling educational
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projects, Skills for Life programme delivery, apprenticeships, work experience, cooking classes,
sustainable local purchasing and local recruitment
@ The establishment of 2 school lettings Framework with a competitive income sharing agreement

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERMAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achiewve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Outwood Grange Academies Trust for the year 1
September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISH

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust Is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks, The Board of Trustees is of
the view that there is a formal ongoing process for (dentifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant
risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and financial statements,

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management infermation and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it Includes:

» comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports

which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

» regular reviews by the Board of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of
major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
setting targets to measure financial and other performance
clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
delegation of authority and segregation of duties
identification and managerment of risks

- F B @

The internal auditor's role includes giving expert advice and performing a range of checks (internal audits) on the
Trust's system of internal controls. The results of these audits are discussad in detail at the Audit Committee. In
addition, and on an annual basis, the internal auditor reports to the Audit Committee on the overall findings and
gives an apinion to the Trustees as to the overall effectiveness of the Trust’s internal controls.

During the year RSM have conducted audits in the areas of:
= Key Financial Controls

Safeguarding

Health and Safety

Estates Strategy

Recruitment and Retention

Learner Records and Data

Sickness Absence Management

Secure Remote Waorking and Operational Resilience
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST

mmmmummmmm AUGUST 2021

Review of previous audit action plans and updates

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to continue
to appoint RSM as internal auditor,

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVEMESS

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the internal auditor;

the work of the external auditor;

the fimnancial management and governance self-assessment process; and

the work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framewark

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Audit Committee and a plan to ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 13 December 2021 and signed on their behalf, by:

Mr David Emhaw,ﬁ“—-" Mr Martyn Oliver, Fo
Chalr of Trustees Chief Executive & Accounting Officer
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The Directars {who also act as Trustees of Outwood Grange Academies Trust) are responsibie for preparing the
Trustees' report and the financial statements In accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice] and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year, Under company law
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and falr
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period, In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to.
* zelect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
= abserve the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
202010 2021
*  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent
* state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements
* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable compamy will continue in business

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting reconds that are sufficient te show and explain the
charitable company transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities,

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation, the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management, They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFASDIE have bean applied for the
purpases intended,

Thie Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable Trust's website. Legislation in the United Kingdam governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 13 December 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

M&,m

Mr David Earnshaw, CBE
Chair of Trustees
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STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

#As Accounting Officer of Outweood Grange Academies Trust | have considered my responsibility to natify the
Academy Trust Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in
place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have
had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

I confirm that | and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020,

| eanfirm that ne instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be natified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA,

Accounting Officer
13 December 2021
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Outwood Grange Academies Trust (the ‘parent charitable company’)
and its subsidiaries {the 'group’} for the year ended 31" August 2021 which comprise the Consolidated statement
of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure account, the Consolidated and Academy Trust's
balance sheet, the Consolidated statement of cash flows and the notes to the financial statements, including
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable faw and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs as at 31° August 2021 and of the group's incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

. have been properly prapared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

o have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Charites SORP 2019 and the

Academies Accounts Direction 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

Basis for opinion

We condueted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1545 (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group and parent charitable
company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in
the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with thase requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our apinion,

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertzinties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt an the group or the parent charitable
company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a peried of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue,

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report,

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual repert, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report therean. Our opinion on the
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financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infarmation is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to & material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstaternent of this other information; we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the wark undertaken In the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report which includes the Directors’ Report and the Strategic
Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements; and

. the Trustees’ Annual Report which Includes the Directors' Report and the Strategic Report has been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent charitable company and thelr
emnviranment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identifled material misstatements in the Trustees’
Annual Report and Strategic Report,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 require us to report
to yaou if, in our opinion:

. adeguate accounting recards have not been kept by the parent charitable company, or returns adequate
for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. the parent charitable company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

. certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

" we have not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities set out on page 26, the trustees (who are
also the directors of the parent charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar.
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In preparing the financial statements, the trusteas are responsible for assessing the group and the parent
charitable company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend ta liquidate the group
or the parent charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

We have been appointed as auditors under the Companies Act 2006 and report in accordance with regulations
made under that Act.

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the group and parent's financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1SAs [UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thesa financial
stalements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The specific procedures for this engagement and the extent to which these are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud are detailed below.

Identifying and assessing risks related to irregularities:

We assessed the susceptibility of the group and parent charitable company’s financial statements ta material
misstatement and how fraud might occur, including through discussions with the trustees, discussions within our
audit tearn planning meeting, updating our record of internal controls and ensuring these controls operated as
intended. We evaluated possible incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements, We (dentified laws and regulations that are of significance in the context of the group and parent
charitable company by discussions with trustees and updating our understanding of the sector in which the group
and parent charitable company cperate.

Laws and regulations of direct significance in the context of the group and parent charitable company include The
Companies Act 2006, guidance issued by the Charity Commission for England and Wales and guidance issued by
the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

Audit response to risks identified:

We considered the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our audit procedures on the
refated financial statement items including a review of financial statement disclosures. We reviewed the parent
charitable company's records of breaches of laws and regulations, minutes of meetings and correspandence with
relevant authorities, including the Education and Skills Funding Agency and the Department for Education to
identify potential material misstatements arising. We discussed the parent charitable company's policies and
procedures for compliance with laws and reguiations with members of management responsible for compliance,

During the planning meeting with the audit team, the engagement partner drew attention to the key areas which
might involve nan-compliance with laws and regulations or fraud, We enguired of management whether they
were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations er knowledge of any actual, suspected
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or alleged fraud. We addressed the risk of fraud through management override of controls by testing the
appropriateness of journal entries and identifying any significant transactions that were unusual or outside the
normal course of business. We assessed whether judgements made in making accounting estimates gave rise toa
possible indication of management bias. At the completion stage of the audit, the engagement partner's review
included ensuring that the team had approached their work with appropriate professional scepticism and thus
the capacity to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud,

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed nen-compliance
with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflacted in the financial statements, the less likely
we would become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than
the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example,
forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion,

A fl.lrthrer descrlptlun of aur rEspunﬂhlhtles is avallable on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at;
1 uk/auditorsras ponsil . This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the parent charitable company’s members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the parent
charitable company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility te anyone other
than the parent charitable company and the parent charitable company’s members as a body, for our audit work,
far this report, or for the apinions we have formed.

lonathan Davis {Senlor Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Saffery Champness LLP

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors
Mitre House

Morth Park Road
Harrogate

HG1 S5RX

Date: 13 Pecan o 202,

saffery Champness LLP s eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006
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In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 13 September 2021 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditurea
disbursed and income recelved by Outwood Grange Academias Trust during the yesr 1 September to 31 August
2021 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This repart is made solely to Outwood Grange Academies Trust and ESFA In accordance with the terms of our
engagemant letter. Dur work has been undertaken so that we might state to Outwood Grange Academies Trust
and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose, To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other Outwood Grange Academies Trust
and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADERMIES TRUST'S ACCOUNTIMNG OFFICER AND THE
REPORTING ACCOUNTANT

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Dutwood Grange Academies Trust’s funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 September 2009 and the Academiss Finarclial
Handbook, extant from 1 September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received |s
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Cur responsibifities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021, We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not confarm to the authorities which govern them.

APPROACH

We conducted our engagement n accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts Bsued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in
our engagement letter,

The objective of 2 limited azsurance engagement s to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity,

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagemant and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion,

Cur engagement incledes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriaty af the
academy trust’s incorme and expenditure.
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

& Risk based sample testing on income and expenditure
* Review of the systems and internal controls in place
& Making appropriate enguiries of the Accounting Officer

OPINION

In the course of our wark, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do nat conform to the authorities
which govern them.

For and on behalf of;
saffery Champness LLP
Statutory Auditors
Mitre House

Marth Park Road
Harrogate

Morth Yorkshire

HG1 SR¥
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Mote

Income and endowments from:

Denations and capital grants 3
Transfer from local authority on
Carmersion
Transfer in from existing
Acadlenmy

Charitable activiies:

Funding for the academy trusl's
aducational operations
Teaching schools

Cthar trading activities
Teaching schooks

Ivvestmants

o T o s

Total Income

Expenditure on:

Charitable activiies:
Academy trust educational
operafions
Teaching schools 4

Total Expenditure

Met income

Transfers between funds 20
Cther recognised (losses) ! gains:
Actuarial (losses) on defined

banafit pansion schameas

Met movement in funds
Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

2020021 2020021 2020021 2020021 S0
Rastrictod Restricted
Unirastricted General  Fixed Asset

Funds Fumds Funds Total Todal

EOOD £000 E00D £000 £000

- - 11,872 11,872 11,871

Fil:] {1,501) 16,238 15,453 -

. - = 4575

652 166,828 166, BEE 149,188

4549 1,318 1,778 1.539

383 o6 419 461

T0 - 70 2

45 - - 45 182

1,735 166,700 28,110 196,545 187 B35

302 165, 2489 T.B57 173,208 158,025

¥ 1,318 = 1,848 1,560

831 166,568 7.657 175,056 159,585

A0t 132 20,453 21,489 8,250

{1.411} 1.411 - -

- {11,883 - (11,883) (127)

804  (13,162) 21,884 8,606 B,123

12,332 {68,087} 216,070 160,305 152,182

13,236 {E"ILESB} 237,934 169,911 1640, 305

All activities in the current and prior year relate o confinuing activities,
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2021 2021 2020 2020

MNate E000 £000 £000 000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 14 145 178
Tangible assoels 15 237,789 215,802
237,934 216,070
Currant assets
Stock 16 12 12
Dettors 17 7,394 6,944
Cash at bank and in hand 27 33,089 J0,345
40,495 3r.am
Liabilities
Craditors: Amounts falling
due within one year ¥ _ o .
Het current assets 31,9086 22,795
Total assets less current
liabilities 269,840 238,865
Creditors: Amounis falling
due after more than ona 14 {4} {11}
yeEar =
Mat assets excluding
pension lability 269,836 238,84
Defined benefit pansion
scheme liability 30 {98,925) (78,548)
Total net assets 169,911 160,305
Funds of the academy
trust:
Restricted funds
Fixed azsat fund &0 237,934 216,070
Restricted income fund 20 18,666 10,452
Fansion reserve 20 (99,925) {78,549)
Total restricted funds 156,675 147,873
Unrestricted income
funds 20 13,236 12,332
Total funds 168,911 160,305

The financial slatements on pages 34 to 37 wore approved by the Directors, and authorsed for issus,
an 13 December 2021 and are signad on their bahalf, by

Mr David Eamshaw, CBE, Chair of
Trustees
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Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangibe assets

Current assets

Stock

Debiors

Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities

Creditors: Amounts fallimg due
within one yaar

Met current assets

Total assets less current

liabilities
Creditors: Amounts faling dus

after more than one year
Wet assets excluding
pension liakbility
Defined benefit pension
scheme iability

Total net assets

Funds of the academy

trust:

Restricted funds
Flaad assat fund
Rastricled income fund
Pansion resare

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted neome funds

Total funds

14
15

16
17

18

18

30

20
20
20

20

2021
£000

237,789

12
7,338

32,562

0,912

(8,006)

269,840

169,911

237,534
18,666

(29,925)

160,911

2021
£000

145

237,834

31,906

(4)
269,836

(99, 525)

156,675

13,236

2020 2020
EQDD E0DO

178
215,892
216,070

12
& 818

29,948

36,778

(13,883)

22,795

238,865
(1)

238,854

{78, 544)

160,305

16,070
10,452

(?5.542!
147 873
12,332

160,305

The financial statements on pages 34 to 37 were approved by the Direciors, and authorised for issue,
on 13 December 2021 and are signed on their bahalf, by

Mr David Earnshaw, CBE, Chair of Trus:
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 AUGUST 2021

Moles
Cash flows from operating
activities
Mat cash provided by operating 4
activities 2

Net cash {used in) investing activities 26

Met cash provided by financing
activities

Change in cash and cash
equivalents in the reporting period

25

Cash and cash equivalents at 1
Seplember 2020

Cash and cash equivalents at 31

August 2021 AL

2021 2020
£000 E000
3401 3.010
(1,366) (4,438)
Toa 1,143
2,744 (285)
30,345 30,630
33,089 30,345
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1 Accounting policles

A summary of the principle accounting policies adepted {which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below,

Basis of Preparation and consalidation

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been preparad
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Aceounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice
applicable to charities preparing thelr accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to
2021 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Outwood Grange Academies Trust constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102.

The Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA) and balance sheet consolidate the financial statements of the Trust
and its subsidiary undertaking Outwood Grange Services Limited. The results of the subsidiary are consolidated on
a lime by line basis.

The Academy Trust has taken advantage of the exemption contained within section 408 of the Companies Act 2006
not to present ts own income and expenditure account, The surplus of the Academy Trust for the period ended
31 August 2021 |5 £21 489k,

Going Concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate ie. whether there are amy material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern. The Trustees have considered the impact of Covid-19 an the angoing performance of
the Trust and the potential impact further disruption could have on the budget for 2021/22. The Trustees make this
assessment in respect of a period of at least one yvear from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial
statements and have concluded that the Academy Trust has adeguate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a gaing concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements.

Income
Allincoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probahble
and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis, The balance of income received
for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet.
Where Income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional
entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the
performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is
accrued,

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is receivable
and any abatement in respect of the period i deducted from income and recognised as a fability,
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Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of
capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised
when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Sponsorship Income

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement
of Financial Activities in the period In which It is receivable (where there are ne performance-related conditions),
where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations
Dionations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the
receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other Income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, i= recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
Acaderny Trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are incleded at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected costs
of sale. I it Is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from other trading
activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading activities' and the
proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical to fair value the items due
to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income
i= recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’,

Transfer on conversion

Where assets and liabilities are received by the Academy Trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred assets
are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership
pass to the Academy Trust. An egual amount of income is recognised as transfer on conversion within Donations
and capital grant income to the net assets received,

Transfer of existing academies into the Academy Trust

Where assets and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the Academy Trusi, the
transferred net assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks
and rewards of ownership pass te the Academy Trust. An equal amount of income is recognised for the transfer of
an existing academy into the Academy Trust within donations and capital grant income to the net assets acquired.

The assets and liabilities of Outwood Academy Hasland Hall, Dutwood Primary Academy Woodlands and Outwood
Frimary Academy Alng have transferred from Derbyshire County Counctl, Doncaster Council and Narth Yorkshire
Council respectively and have been valued at their fair value at the point the risks and rewards transfer to the Trust.
Further details of the transactions are set out in note 33,

Donated fixed assets (excluding Transfers on conversion/finto the Academy Trust)

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this reliably,
in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as income from donations
and a correspending amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic fife in accardance with the Academy Trust’s accounting policies.
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Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of
the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs
attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity, Shared costs which contribute to more than
one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent,
and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use. All resources expended are Inclusive of
irrecoverable VAT,

Expenditure on Ralsing Funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and indudes
costs of all fundraising activities, events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable Activities
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating
to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Intangible Fixed Assets

Intangible assets costing £5,000 or more {as of October 2020) are capitalised and recognised when future economic
benefits are probable and the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably, Intangible assets are initially
recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost net of amortisation and any provision for impairment.

Amartisation s provided on intangible fived assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a
straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Purchased computer software 25%  owver 4 years

Tangible Fixed Assets
Assets costing £3,000 or mare (as of October 2020) are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost,
net of depreciation and any provision for impairmant.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from
the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful
ecanomic life, Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset,
the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried
farward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fived asset
fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangjble fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged toe the unrestricted fund.

Depraciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freshald fand and assets under construction, on a
straight-line basis over its lifecycle at rates calculated to write off the cost of each assat over an expected useful
life, as follows:

Freehold buildings 2% over 50 years
Long leasehoid bulldings 2% over 50 years
Long leasehold land 0.8% owver 125 years
Motor vehicles 25%  over 4 years
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Furniture and fixtures 10% over 10 years

Computer equipment 258 owver 4 years
Plant and eguipment 108  owver 10 years
Assets under construction 0% no depreciation

Assets in the course of eonstruction are included at cost. Depreclation on these assets is not charged until they are
brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and
their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of
Firancial Activities,

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there Is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will ba required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can
be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to settle
the debt or the amount it has received as advance payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event
which it is probabie will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Frovisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the sbligation. Where the effect of
the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at
the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised
within interest payable and similar charges.

Leased Assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA) on a straight fine basis
over the lease term.

Investments

The Trust's shareholding in the wholly owned subsidiary, Outwood Grange Services Limited, is included in the
balance sheet at the cost of the share capital owned less any impairment. There is no readily available market value
and the cost of valuation exceeds the benefit derived.

Financial Instrumants
The Academy Trust only halds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial
liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets — trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at
amortised cost as detailed In note 17. Prepayments are not financlal instruments. Amounts due to the charity’s
wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment,

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value,

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at
amortised cost as detailed in note 18 and 19. Taxation and social security are not included In the financial
instrurnents disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial Hability, as the cash settlement
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has already taken place and there s an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial
instrument, Amounts due to charity's whally owned subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Stock
Unsold uniforms and catering stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out In Paragraph 1 Schedule & of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes, accordingly, the
Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories
covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains
Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Interest receivable
Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by the
Academy Trust; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or pavable by the Bank.

Debtors
Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered. Prepayments
are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due,

Cash at Bank and in hand
Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and shoert term highly Hguid investments with a short maturity of three
manths or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar acoount.

Pensions Benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme ["TPS) and
the Local Government Pension Scheme |'LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemas.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated 5o as to spread the cost of pensions ower
employess’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantial level
percentage of current and future pensicnable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basts of guadrennial valuations using s prospective unit credit method. TPS i an unfunded mult-
employer scherme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequenthy, the TPS is treated as a
defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they
relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust
in separate Trustee administered funds, Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarizl basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the
current rate of return on a high guality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the labiiities. The
actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts
charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme Introductions, benefit changes,
settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred, MNet interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on
the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of
the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference
between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in
other recognised gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains
and |osses.
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Fund Accounting

Unrestricted Income Funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees. Restricted fived asset funds are resources which are
to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a
specific purpose. Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposad by
the funder/donor and include grants from the DfE and the ESFA.

Agency arrangements

The academy acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from the ESFA. Payments received from the ESFA
and subsequent dishursements to students are excluded from the Statement of Financial Activities as the Trust
doas not have control over the charitable application of the funds. The Trust can use up to 5% of the allocation
towards its own administration costs, but this is not recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities. The funds
recelved and any paid balances held are disclosed in note 32,

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed o be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the
net cost (income] for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in
note 30, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which
projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary
in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2021, Any differences between the figures derlved from the roll forward
approach and 2 full actuarial valuation would impact on the carmying amount of the pension liabillty,

Critical areas of judgement

During the year ended 31 August 2021 three schools converted to the Academy Trust. The judgement of fair value
has been applied by considering the net book values of the land and buildings and supporting independent
valuation.

2 General Annual Grant (GAG)

Prior to 2019/20 the Trust has received an exemption from the ESFA for the 12% GAG carried forward limit for
Dutwood Grange Academy, Adwick, Ripon, Portland and Valley. In 2018/19 the Trust updated the funding
agreement for these academies so the restrictions and corresponding relaxation are no longer required for any
academies within the Trust,

Page 43 of 77



OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST

2021

3 Donatlons and capital grants

2020121 2020021 2020/21 2020121 201920
Un-  pstricted Fi“"’l ,""" Total Total
i Funds Funds Funds
Funds Funds
£000 E000 E000 £000 EQDD
Capital Grants
DEIESFA . = 10,437 10437 11,045
Capital Grants
Govarnment s 1,638 1,638 334
Oither Capital Grants 4 - B1 B1 364
Donation of Fixed
Assets = 16 18 124
- 11,872 11,872 11,871
‘om0 : - 1187 11,871
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4 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

DfE ! ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Start Up Granis
Other OFE Group grants
UIFSM
Fupil Premium
Other
Mational Collage Grants

Other Governmant grants
Local autharity grants

Other government grants

Other Income from the academy trusts
educational operations
Catering

Other income

COWVID-18 additional funding (DIEFESFA)
Calch-up pramium

Funding for mass festing

Coronawviris Exceplional Support

COVID-12 additional funding (non-DFfEAESFA)
Comonavirus Job Retention Scheme grant
Qifrer COWVID-18 funding

Income for the Trust

Income for the Teaching Schaol (Outwood
Grange Services Lid)

Tol=l 2018020

2020021 202021 2020421 201920
Un- .
Restricted Total Total
restrictad
Funila Funds Funds Funds
E£000 £000 £000 £000
- 140,381 140,381 127,020
- 429 428 14
- 348 349
- B, 460 B.460
3 B,333 B,338 16,084
40 1,258 1,299 1,129
43 159,211 159,254 144,247
- 3,918 3018 3514
- 105 1086 &1
- 4,023 4,023 3,585
- 1,799 1,789 1,885
478 52 T30 B56
ATE 2,051 2528 2521
- 1.802 1,802 -
- 833 B33 -
E . - 32
- 125 125
521 168,145 168,666 150,725
62 166,826 166,888 149 186
459 1,319 1,778 1,538
511 168,145 168,666 150,725
478 150 249 150,725
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Other than the DFE/ESFA grants which are for the provision of education, capital works and schoal
hwm-mmnt.ﬁnmmmmmmhnﬁmhﬂlamhﬂmmﬁhﬁme,sm
and high needs funding as well as income lowards the ransport of students and some bieability funding.
qumtmmmmmﬁmmmpmmm Outwood Grange Services
Limitad has recefved grants from the DME (formerly National College for Teaching and Leaming) for variaus
projects which they carry out. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies for the grants

recognised in the SOFA,

5  Other trading activities

Hire of facilifies
Exernal fees
Educational sales

Inzame for the Trust
Income for the Teaching School {Outwood
Grange Senvices Lid)

Total 201920

B Investment income

Interesi on shorl term depogits

Total 201820

2020021 2020921 2020121 201520
Un-
Restricted Total Total
resirlcted
Funds Funds Funds Funds
£000 E000 £000 £000
- 62 122
3 - Ky | 188
70 56 126 172
453 56 509 482
383 56 438 4E1
T - 70 21
453 56 509 4582
430 52 482
2021 2020121 202021 2019/20
mﬂrl-:; Restriched Total Tatal
Funds Funds Funds
Funds
£000 gooo E00D £00a
45 = 45 182
182 - 182
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST

T Expenditure

Expenditure on raksing funds:
Direct Costs

Allocated Support Costs

Academy's educational operations:
Direct Costs

Allocated Support Costs

Total 2019/20

Met income for the period includes:

Cperating lease rentals including PFI

Depreciation
Loss on disposal of fixed assels

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets (included within
Charitable Activities — Academy trust educational operations)

Internal audit fees

Fees payable to auditor for
- audit

- pther senvices

2021
Non Pay Expenditure
2020721 2020421 2020021 2020421 2019520
Total
Staff Costs Premises Other Eund Total
£000 EQ00 E000 £000 £O00
B6,888 - 16,529 103,417 85 486
45,622 16,150 8,867 71,639 64,009
132,510 16,150 26,396 175,056 159,585
119,665 14,882 25,038 159,585
2020121 2018020
Total Tatal
Funds Funds
E000 £000
7.040 E,888
7496 5,944
78 o113
81 106
&1 549
44 52
20 21
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B Charitable Activities 2020021 202021 2020021 2020421 2019720
Unrestricted Resfiricted FEWH Tatal Tatal
Funds Furds I expanditure expenditune
Funds
£000 £000 E00OD E000 F000
Direct costs — educational
operations 363 95,397 7,857 103,417 05 485
Support costs - educational
operations 468 71,171 - 71,639 54,099
81 166,568 7857 175,056 150,585
Expenditure for the Trust 302 165,249 7.657 173,208 158,025
Expendiiere for the Teaching Schood
(Outwood Grange Servicas Lid) 529 .31 & 1,848 1.560
8231 166,568 7.65T 175,058 159,585
Total 2019/20 773 151,849 B,953 150,585
Analysis of support costs 2020/21 2020121 2018720
Educational
Operations Total Total
EDOD E£000 E00a
Bank interest and charges &0 50 a0
Catering costs 2,983 2,983 3,033
Cleaning 2,583 2,563 1,878
Govermnancs coslis 135 135 1a4
Heat and Light 2,519 2,519 2,234
Ingurance 631 521 494
Maintenance of premises and equipment 9.228 8,228 8,998
Marketing 103 103 92
Other support costs 1,846 1,848 1,551
Pension Interast cost (net) 1,303 1,303 1,279
Recruitment and support 545 545 215
Fent and Rates 927 827 B4z
Security and Transport 347 M7 g
Staff Devedopment 181 181 204
Support staff costs 45,622 45,622 40,299
Technology costs 2,501 2,501 2,085
Telephone costs 2658 265 230
Total support costs 71,639 71,639 G4,088
Total 2019/20 64,009 64,092
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L] Pension Interest

Interest income on pension scheme assets
Interest on pension scheme liabilities

10  Staff
a. Staff costs

Vi'eges and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restrustuning costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments
Severance payments

b. Non statutory/non-contractual stafl severance payments

Included in staff restructuning costs are non-statutory/nen-coniractual severance payments {otalling
£27.000 (2020: £4,000). Indhvdually the payments were: £9,250, £9,000, £3 376, £3,224, £2, 236,

2020721 2018520
E000 £000
1,539 1.583
(2,842) {2,872)
(1,303) {1.278)
2020121 2019420
£000 £000
93,888 B4 553
8,316 & 282
26,840 23470
130,044 116,305
2,335 3,234
131 126
132,510 118,685
104 122
a7 4
131 128

The Trust has agreed settlement tenns with 5 colleagues In the 2020021 academic year. In each case,

the agreament reached was becausa it represanted best value for the Trust

c. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

Teachers
Adminsstration and support
Management

2020021 2018520
MNo. Ho.
1,714 1,580
2,324 2219
13 12
4,051 3821
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OUTWODD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST

d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust expressed as a full time equivalent during

the year was as follows:
2020421 205520
Ma. Ha.
Teachers 1,484 1,404
Adrministration and support 1,285 1,211
Management 13 12
2,802 2632

e, Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employes benefits (excluding employer pension costs) excesded

£60,000 was:
2020121 201920
Mo, Mo,
£60,001 - £70,000 69 53
E70.0071 - £80,000 20 17
£80,001 - £80,000 10 3
£90,001 - £100,000 9 15
£100,001 - £110,000 6 4
£110,001 - £120,000 1 4
£120,001 - £130.000 5 1
£180,001 - £170,000 1 1
£170,001 - E180,000 - 1
E180,001 - £190,000 1 -
122 a4

The increase in staff paid ouer £60k is primarily due to the addition of four new schools into the Trust
increasing overall staff numbers and the impact of staff incrementing to scalepoint L16 or above. This is
where teaching staff have incremented based on their performance reviews and are entitled to a pay

progression.

Page 50 of 77




k. Key management personnel

During the year ended 31 August 2021 120 (2020: 97) of the above steff parficipated in a pension
schame. 114 (2020; 84) were in the Teachers' Pension Schama and 8 (2020 3) were in fhe Local
Government Pension Scheme whilst 2 were in no pension scheme (Z020; 2). Employers pension
conlributions for the TPS amounted fo £2,0683k (2020: £1,695k) and for the LGPS E78k (2020; E45k),

The key management personnel of the Trust is comprised of the Trusiess and the senior management
team as ksted on page 1 plus the Associate Executive Principals. The total amount of employee benefits
{including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key
management personnel for their sendces to the Trust was £2, 165,000 (2020: £1,915,000)

11 Central Services
The Acadesry Trust has provided the following central services 1o its academies during the year:

Payrol

HR:

Finance

Procurement

Governance

Capital project managemeant and estates management
IT sarvices

Confinued professional development (CPD)
School improvement

Dats managemeant and compliance

. Website managemant and compliance

. Recruitment

" & & & = & & @&

Each Academy was charged 5% of GAG in respect of these cenfral senicas.
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST

Charges For Central Services By Academy

Dutwoed Academy
Dutwood Academy
Cutwood Acadeamy
Dutwood Acadermy
Oubwoad Acadamy
Cutwond Academy
Outwood Academy
Cutwood Academy
Outwood Academy
Cutwood Academy
Outwood Academy
Qutwood Academy
Outwood Academy
Dubwood Academy
Outwood Academy
Dubwood Academy
Cutwood Academy
Outwood Academy
Dutwood Acadenmy
Outwood Academy
Dutwood Academy
Cutwood Acadeny
Outwood Acadamy
Cutwood Acadermny
Cutwood Primary
Cutwood Primary
Outwaod Primary
Outwaod Primary
QOuitwood Primary
Cutwond Primary
Outwood Primary
Qubtwocd Primary
Outwood Primary
Dutwood Primary
Outwood Primary
Qutwood Junior

Outwood Grangs
\alley

Cramism
Portland
Acklam
Adwick
Shafion
Mewhoid

City

Caritan
Ormasby
Bydales
Easingwold
Brumbry

Ripon
Bishopsgarth
Faxhills
Redcar
Freeston
Hemsaworth
City Fields
Mormankby
Riverside
Hasland Hall
Littleworth Grange
Lofthouse Gate
Ledger Lane
Darfiald
Kirkhamgate
Greystone

Bell Lane
Mewstead Green
Park Hill
Woodiands
Alne

Brurmby Junkor

2020021 201820
EQDD EQ0D
485 475
389 389
N7 298
386 356
382 380
315 ant
ara 324
264 264
274 255
325 282
284 238
227 215
158 168
214 198
156 189
155 147
191 173
146 137
210 186
289 pls]
205 196
202 181
34 .
104 .
103 96
79 [
65 60
45 45
34 34
3 an
52 b2
38 ar
g2 83
54 B5
8,779 6,296
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'OUTWOOD GRANGE AGADEMIES TRUST
mmmm;mmmmmamm AUGUST

12 Related Party Transactions - Trustees’ remuneration and expenses

One trustee (the Accounting Officer) has been paid remuneraion or has received ather benefits from
employ ment with the academy trust. The CEO only receives remuneration in respect of services they
provide undertaking the rodes of principal and staff members under their coniracts of employment.

The value of trustess’ remuneration and ather banafits was as follows:

Martyn Oliver (Chief Executive Officer, Accounting Officer and trustee):
Remuneration £180,000 - £185,000 (2020: £170,000 - £175,000)
Emplayer's pension contributions paid £40,000 - £45,000 (2020: £40,000 - £45,000)

During the period ended 31 August 2021, no Directors received any benefits in kind {2020 - no directors).
During the period ended 31 August 2021, fravel and subsistence expensas totalling £0 were reimbursed or
paid directly to 0 frustess (2020 £1,037 to 2 trustees).

13 Trustees and officers Insurance

The trust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an altarnative to
insurance where UK govesnment funds cover losses that anse, This scheme protects trustees and officars
from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and
provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not pessible to quantify the Directors and officers indamnity element
from the overall cost of the RPA scheme
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OUTWODD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
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201

14 Intangible fixed assets: Consolidated and

academy trust

Cost

ALY September 2020
Acruisitions
Adcitizns

Dispasals

Transfars

Al 31 August 2021

Amartisation
At 1 September 2020
Acquisiions
Charged in year
Disposa

Transfars

A1 31 August 2021

Carrying amount
Al 31 August 2020
Al 31 August 2021

Computer

Software Tatal
E000 EDDO
T 70

1 1

46 48

(8) (8)

3 3

752 752
532 532

g3 Bl

(8) (8)
607 807
178 178
145 145
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST

201

15 Tangible fixed

assets:

Consolidated and Bulldings  and Bulldings

Cost

At 1 Beplember 2020
AzguEsiions
Additions

Dispasats

Transfers

At 3 August H021

Depreciation

Al 1 Seplember 2020
Acquisitions
Charged in year
Disposals

Transfers

A 31 August 2021

Net Book Values
A1 31 August 2020
At 31 August 2021

Fixtures
Freehold Land Leasehold Land
2 Equipmant

Vehicles

Computer  Assets  Under
Equipment  Construction

Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
57,881 153,556 18,690 10,307 417 251,991
- 16,164 19 70 . 16,253
53 1,105 1,681 1,696 BE78 13,223
: : {143) (493) (58) (895)
- 15,013 507 a2 (16,015) (3)
58,034 185,878 21,164 11,672 4,021 280,769
6,819 14,441 7,399 7,440 - 36,099
980 3,120 1,850 1,446 - 7,496
- - (123) (492) - (615)
7,799 17,561 8,226 8,394 - 42,980
51,162 138,155 11,281 2,867 11,417 215,892
50,235 168,317 11,938 3,278 4,021 237,769
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15 Tangible fixed Freehaold Leasehold Fixtures Assets
assels: Land and Landand  Equipment Computer Under
AcademyTrust  Buidings  Buildings  Vehicles " P Construction o .
£000 £000 £000 £000 E000 £000

Cost
At 1 Seplarnber 2020 57 581 153,508 18,6890 10,302 1,417 251,986
Acquisions = 16,164 19 | - 16,253
Addifons 53 1,108 1,691 1,696 8,678 13,223
Disposals . . (143) (483) (59 {695)
Transfars - 15,013 a07 92 {16,015 i3)
At 31 August 2021 58,034 185,878 21,164 11,667 4,021 280,764
Depreciation
AL 1 Seplember 2020 6,819 14,441 7,200 7,435 - 36,004
ADquEifons = & =, = - 5
Charged in year 980 3,120 1,950 1,445 - 7,496
Disposals - . (123} [452) - [615)
Transkers - = T = g i
At 31 August 2021 7,798 17,561 9,226 8,389 . 42,975
Net Book Values
AL 31 August 2020 51,1682 138,155 11,281 2,867 11,417 215,852
At 31 August 2021 50,235 168,317 11,938 3,278 4,021 237,789

Inchuded within acquisitions are amounts donated on conversion from a Local Autharity school of:

£12,573k for Outwood Academy Hastand Hall from Derbyshire County Council, £2, 713k far Outwood
Primary Academy Woodiands from Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council and £851k for Oubwood
Primary Academy Alne from Norh Yorkshire County Council. Al three converted with the transfer of 125

year peppercom |ease from helr respactive local authorities,

Also included in acquisitions are £10k of computer equipment donated to Brumby and Foxhills by the DIE

to support home keaming plus £6& of fumiture donated to Easingwald

The disposals of assats relate fo demalifion costs at Hemsworth, plus assets that have been fully writhen

down and are no longer in use by the academy

Included in freehold land and buildings is freehaold land at valuation £8 044k (2020: £8,044k) which is not

odepreciated.
18  Stock Group Academy Group Acedemy
2020021 2020121 201820 2018020
£000 E000 E000 E0DD
Clothing and catering 12 12 12 12
12 12 12 12
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'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 Debtors

Trade Debtors

VAT recoverabla

Othar Debiars

Prepayments and Accrued Incoms

18 Creditors: Amounts falling
due within 1 year

Trade Creditors

Other Tax and Social Security
ESFA Craditor; Abatement of GAG
Other Credifors

Accruaks and Defarred Income

Deferred Income al 1 Septembar 2020

Feleased from pravious years
Resources deferad in the year
Deferrad Income a1 31 August 2021

ACADEMIES TRUST
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST

Group Acadomy Group Academy
2020/24 2020/21 2018/20 2019720
E00D EDoO E000 £00a
84 ] i 45
2,047 2,039 2,052 2045

i 4 3 3

5,258 5,225 4,783 4,725
7,394 7.338 6,044 6,818
Group Academy Group Acadanmy
2020121 2020/ 201920 201920
E000 E0DO EQOO £000
2,502 2,480 2,587 2,556
3 3 2,060 2,080
i E 180 180
ara 849 3,029 2,809
5205 4 B4 6,650 &,189
B,569 8,006 14,506 13,983
1,003 1.051 B55 618
(1,083 (1,081) (B55) (G18)
1,158 937 1,093 1.051
1,158 937 1.083 1,051

Al the balance sheet date the acedemy trust was holding funds received in sdvance for, Rates reliel £205k,
IFIFSM £220k, Maths Hub Grant £148k, AFMIFNF (Matts SEM} Funding £122k, TV Careers Grant €185k,
Sport England PE grant £22k, English Hub Grant £50k. Heppsy Grant £22k, School Games Organiser £14k,
SEN (LA} E44k, MAT Careers Catch UP £30k, Valley exclusions related LA income £75k, Other grants and

incoma £24k,

19 Creditors: Amounts falling
due after more than 1 year

Oiner Creditoss

Group
2020021
ED0OD

4

Academy

2020021
£000

4

Group

20120
£000

11

Academy
2019020
EQD0

11

Within creditors graster than 1 year is a Sallx Loan with a tolal balance outstanding of £4k (2020 £11k),
additional to anather £7k which is payabie within 1 year, The interest rate on the loan is 0%, The loan will be

fully repaid by 2023,
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20 Consolidated Funds

Restricted General Funds
General Annual Grant

Start Up Grant

Pupdl Pramiurm

Other Grants

Other Income

Pension Resene

Restricted fixed assets fund
Transfer on conversean

CHE Group capital grants
Capital expenditure from GAG
Sponsorship

Total resdricted funds
Total unrestricted funds

Total Funds

Balance al

i Gains | Balance at
Income Expenses Loages | 1 August
September
2020 Transfers 20
E000 E£000 £000 E0OO EQOD
10,451 140,361 (130, 755) {1.411) 18,666
429 {425 < 3
8,450 (2460 -
16,824 [156,624) -
- 2,107 (2,107) . .
(78, 548) (1,601) (7,953) (11,883) (99,925)
{68,097) 166,700 (166, 568) (13,254) {81,259)
167 652 16,238 (4. 70%) = 178,181
31,054 10,137 (408) - 40,783
16,448 - {2, 484 1,411 15,375
818 1,735 {56} 2,595
216,070 28,110 (7.B57) 1,411 237,934
147,973 154,810 (174, 225) {11,883) 156,675
12,332 1,735 (831} = 13,236
160,306 196,646 {175,086) {11,883) 169,911
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The specific purposes for which the funds are 1o be appked are as folows:

Unrestricted fund: this containg rescurces which can be spent on any purpose at the discration of the
frusieas, within the ohjects of the Trust as sef out in its governing documents.

Festricted general fund: fthis contains revenue (running costs) resources which can only be spent for
particular purposes. llems within restricted funds are as balow:

General Annual Grant {3AG): must be used for the normal running costs of the acadamiss.

Start up Grant this income is received from the ESFA as part of GAG income and is for schoals that have
recenty converted

Other DIE/ESFA grants: this is Pupil Premium, UIFSM income, Early Years funding, Summer schoal
funding and sports grants income,

COVID-18 additional funding [DIE/ESFA): This is incame for Covd calch up activities, mass testing and
othar Cowd 19 lmpacts on schools.

Chher Grangs: this is SEM and ather Local Authority grant income,
Crher income: this is mainly catering sales income from students.

Festricted fixed assat fund: this contalns resources lo be spent for particular capital purposes where the
conditions of the funding state that the asset must be retained and used on an ongoing basls.

£1.411k (2020: £4,620K) was ransferred from restricted funds to restrictad fixed assets funds o support
the purchase of essats,
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Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows :

Restricted General Funds
General Annual Grant
Start Up Grant

Pupil Prermiwm

Other Grants

Othar Income

Pension Resarva

Restricted fixed assets fund
Transfer on conversion

ME Group capital grants
Capital expenditure from GAG
Sponsorship

Total restricted funds
Total unrestricted funds

Total Funds

Balance at

1 Gains | Badance at
I e Expenses Logses [ 31 Augest
Eapt“;:; Transfars 2020
E000 £000 E000 E000 £000
9,934 127 020 (121,883} 4.620) 10,451
. 14 (14) - :
- 8,140 {B.140) . B
12,850 {12,8490) -
- 2137 [2,137) - -
170, 248) {1,488 (5.685) (127} (78 548)
(60, 314) 148,813 (151,849) (4,747) (B8,097)
166,754 4913 4,015) 167,652
20413 11,0449 (408} - 31,054
14 312 . (2 484) 4,820 16,448
150 a2z (58] - 916
201,629 16,764 (B, 963} 4,620 216,070
141,315 165,597 {158,512) {127) 147 873
10,867 2238 {773) = 12,332
152,182 167,835 (15%9,585) {127) 160,305
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Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were aliocated as follows:

Outwood Academy  Trusi

Ouiwood Primary

Outwoaod Junior

Acklam
Adwick
Bishopsgarth
Brurmby
Bydales
Carfton

City

City Fhafds
Danum
Easingwold
Faxhills
Fresston
Hasland Hall
Hemsworth
Mewbald
Normanby
Cutwood Grange
Ormeshy
Partland
Redcar

Ripon
Riverside
Shaftan

Vallay

Bod Lans
Darfield
Greysione
Kirkhamgate
Ledger Lane
Littleworth Grange
Lofthouse Gate
Newstead Green
Park Hill
Waodlands
Alna

Brumby

Total before fixed asset fund and pension reserve
Restricted Fixed Assel Fund

Pension resarwe
Total funds

Total Total
2021 2020
£000 E000

5672 5408
7,625 5,641
4025 3,572
396 239
555 447
534 262
128 (370)
(85) (458)
(45) (350)
(318) (779)
(3,397) (2,704)
(B70)  (1,001)
(394) (454)
B22 .
(1.382)  (1,088)
(1,888)  (2,166)
57 733
7.058 B487
288 (608)
3,834 3211
(812) (656)
1,083 860
73 =
1,434 487
3433 2727
(88) (85)
2M 164
{147) (190)
(8) 148
B35 54
1,263 1,060
274 230
(186) (140)
599 777
208 !
18 -
g7 T
31,902 22,784

237,934 216,070

(99.025) _ (78,549)

169,911 160,305
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST

2021

The following academies are carrying net deficits on their portion af the funds as follows:

MName of Academy Deficit
2021
£000

Outwood Academy  City Flelds (45)

City (86
Danum (318)
Easingwald (3,397)
Fexhills (870)
Freeston (384}
Hemsworth {1,392)
Mewbald (1,888)
Redcar {912)
Outwood Primary  Bell Lane (38)
Greystone (147)
Kirkhamgate (9)
Newstead Green {188)

Deficit
2020
£000
(350
(458)
(779)

(2,704)

(1,001)
(454)

(1,056

(2,186)
(856)

(85)
{180)
148
(140)

The Trust's objective is to ensure that pooled reserves remain sufficient to cover capital requiremants and the
reserve policy of the Trust as a whole. By applying the family of schools’ ethos to capital allocation, the Trust
will allow individual schools to set in year defict budgets and have an overall fund deficit if the programme of

school improvement, staffing restructure, pupil growth (and the impact of lagged funding) and capital

investment requires it. However, this process always ensures that ring fenced funding such as pupil premium
is preserved in each school and that the overall financial heaith of the Trust is maintained. The Trust will
manage the in year deficits of any schools during the tumaround phase which includes implementing plans
that will return a surplus budgel in the long term. The academies above are expected to deliver surplus

budgets in the long term.
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Analysis of Academies by cost for the year ended 31 August 2021

Teaching
and Dihar Other costs
education suppeort Education excl,

staff cosis staff costs supplies  depreciation Total 2021
E00O E000 E000 E000 £000

At klarm 4,599 1,234 280 1,071 7164
Audedck 4,576 1,304 3 TaY 7,050
Bishopsgarth 2,445 BE1 123 382 3,611
Erumby amT 8r7 202 454 4,940
Bydales 3134 518 136 1,042 4,830
Carlton 4,529 1,036 359 1,450 7,374
City Fiakds 4,329 1,081 326 201 6637
City 3,089 733 144 GO6 4 524
Dianum 4 84 1.037 388 a21 6,930
Easingwold 2854 528 135 G62 4, 280
Foshills 2811 6649 182 582 4,254
Freestan 3,362 860 207 556 4 9R5
Outwood Grangs 7483 2.685 534 1.204 11,806
Hasland Hall 1,738 212 80 23 2332
Hemsworth 4753 1,278 327 BE2 7220
Mewbold 4,430 BES 3563 1,194 6,658
Mormanby 3,442 86 165 1,266 5,438
Ormeshy 3,789 T30 214 936 5710
Portkand 5 694 a7 333 2,023 B 96T
Fedcar 2 504 51 110 B34 3,789
Ripon 2,926 702 161 544 4,332
Fiverside 675 215 101 275 1.266
Shafion 4.7 1.018 424 1,722 7805
Wallay 6,780 1,086 A 1,562 8,848
Bel Lans 1,025 196 £ 197 1,482
Darfiakd 785 143 a2 278 1,238
Greystone 543 157 32 132 B4
Kirkhamgate T34 177 a5 1683 1,108
Ledger Lane 1,262 267 51 248 1,828
Littleworth Grange 1,522 2T ) 551 2418
Lofthouse (Gate 1,456 273 53 254 2,041
Mewstead Graan 716 187 a0 157 1,080
Park Hill 1,478 263 55 322 2,118
Woodlands a0 187 a0 193 1.341
Alne 189 27 20 48 284
Brurmby Junior 1.514 2T a0 255 2,050
Trust 2,582 2615 20 46 5,663
Outwood Grange Sendces Lid 576 256 B 1,007 1,847
108,345 26,603 6,686 25,765 167,390
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Analysis of Academies by cost for the year ended 31 August 2020

Teaching
and Othar Other costs
education support Education excl.

staff costs staff costs supplies  deprecistion Total 2020

£000 E000 E£000 E000 £000

Acklam 4 446 1,064 485 1.075 7,045
Adwick 4,278 1,313 358 772 5,719
Bishopsgarth 2478 572 182 s 3,583
Brumkbny 3,062 830 237 AGE 4,595
Bydalas 3,145 388 165 ag2 4,680
Carlton 413 934 384 1,371 6,025
City Fields 3,581 1,147 204 7a2 6,084
Ciky 2,985 755 2249 696 4,666
Cranum 4 468 1.005 417 8913 6,803
Easingwakd 2918 547 137 A4 4,248
Faxhills 2,555 B25 215 G605 4,001
Freeston 3164 BED 205 522 4575
Dutwend Grangs 7036 2,436 552 1123 11,147
Hemswarih 4 788 1,285 439 861 7,394
MWeawbold 4132 G37 300 1,188 8,257
Marmarn by 3,040 500 230 1,050 4829
Ormesby 3A73 B2 299 883 5,384
Partland £,039 851 453 1,803 8,346
Redear 2,438 480 130 508 3,536
Ripon 2830 620 131 517 3,898
Shafton 4,183 821 421 1,703 7,228
Walley 6,133 1,048 =12 1,415 8,985
Ball Lane 55 188 38 173 1,354
Darfisld Tdd 1349 38 276 1,185
Greystone G058 140 a2 115 B93
Kirkhamgate BT 162 34 138 861
Ledger Lane 1,078 228 50 204 1,558
Littleworth Grange 1415 292 62 528 2,297
Lofthouse Gata 1,381 236 66 286 1,898
Mewslead Grean 728 186 3z 140 1,084
Park Hill 1,382 227 54 286 1,929
Brumby Junior 1,400 254 55 249 1,958
Trust 2,848 2202 48 1 5,009
Cutwood Grange Services Lid 433 253 28 B4s 1,560
88,076 23 868 7,166 23,512 152,622
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21 Analysis of net assets between funds
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are represented by:

Resfricted Resdricted
Ums::.:: General Fixed Assat  Total Funds
Funds Funds
EDO0O £000 EQ0OD EDDOD
Intangibde fixed assets B 145 145
Tangible fixed assels - - 237,788 237,789
Current assels 13,236 27,258 - 40,495
Current liakilibas - {8,580 s (8,588)
Mon-current liabilities - 4] 4]
Pension schame fability - {29 925) - (99,925)
Total net assels 13,236 (81,259) 237,934 169,911
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows :
Riestricted Rest
”"”"FT:;: Ganeral Fmd'::ﬂ Total Funds
Fumds Finds
E0O0 £000 £000 E00D
Intangible fixad assats - - 178 178
Tangiole fixed assais - - 215,882 215,892
Current assets 12,332 24,889 - 37,301
Current liabfities - 114, 506) - (14,506)
Mon-current Rabilities (11) - (11}
Pension scheme liability - (78,545) - {78,549)
Total net assets 12,332 (68,097) 216,070 160,305
22  Capital commitments
2021 2020
E000 E£000
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements 1,420 752

The main costs contracted for relate to: The extension of the P16 center at Worksop and Classrooms at

Foxhills, Marmanby and Eston.
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23  Commitments under operating leases

Operating leases

At 31 August 2021 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases was:

Group Academy GEroup Academy
2021 2021 2020 2024
£000 E000 £000 EQDO
Amounts due within one year 7,018 7.018 6,911 6,911
Amaunts due between one and five years 27,342 27 342 28,765 26,765
Amounis due after five years 53,319 53,314 58,784 58,784
87,680 87,680 892 480 02 &0
24  Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities
2020621 201520
£000 £000
Net income for the reporting period (as per the statement of
financial activitles) b b il e
Adjusted for:
Amortisation [note 14] B3 106
Cepreciation [note 15] 7,486 5,944
Loss on disposal of fixed assals 78 813
Capital grants from DOfE and other capital income (11,872) {11,871)
Interest receivable [note &] (45) (182)
Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited 1,501 1.488
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions
S mﬂm 6,569 5,302
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost [note 30] 1,423 1,384
Transfer in of assets from local authority on acad
conversions and academy transfers B (1550 {5089)
{Increase) in stocks - {2)
{Increase) in debtors (450) (404)
{Decrease) in creditors (5,917) {1.855)
Net cash provided by Operating Activities 3,401 3,010
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25  Cash flows from financing activities

2020021 2019/20
E000 E000
Repaymenis of borrowing (N {7
Cash inflows from new academies converting or trarsferring 716 1,150
Net cash provided by financing activities 709 1,143
26 Cash flows from investing activities
2020021 201920
£000 £000
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 45 182
Froceads from sale of tangible fixed assats 2 i
Purchase of intangible fived assets (46) (105)
Purchase of tangible fixed assets {13,223) {16,263)
Capital granits from DfE Group 10,137 11,049
Capital funding received from sponsors and others 1,719 a8
Net cash (used in) investing activities {1,366) {4,438)
27 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
202021 2018020
E0D0 EQ00
Cash in hand and at bank 18,581 15,848
Mofice deposits 14,508 14,499
Total cash and cash equivalents 33,089 30,345
28  Analysis of changes in net debt
At1 Transfers At 31
Saplember im of new August
2020  Cash flows academies 201
£000 E£000 £000 £000
Cash 30,345 2,028 716 33,089
30,345 2,028 T16 33,089
Loans falling due within one year (7 - - (7}
Loans falling due after more than one year {11) T - {4}
Total 30,327 2,035 716 33,078
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OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST

20

29 Members liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the asssts of the company in the event of
it being wound up while heishe |s a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be 2 member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before hefshe ceases to

be 2 member,

30 Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Schame
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
{LGFS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by:

Teesside Pension Fund (TPF)
Qutwood Academy

Morth Yorkshire Pension Fund (NYPF)
Outwood Academy

Cutwood Primary Academy

Wesl Yorkshire Pension Fund (WYPF)
Dutwood Academy

Cutwood Primary Academy

East Riding Pension Fund (ERPF)
Outwood Academy

Outweod Junior Academy
Derbyshire Pension Fund {DPF)
Chuwood Academy

Notts Pension Fund (MPF)
Cubwood Academy

Bishopsgarth
Bydales
Riverside

Easingwold
Greystane
Oubtwood Grange
City Fields
Kirkhamgate
Ledger Lane
Lofthouse Gate

Brumkby Jurior
MNewbald

Partland

Crmeskby
Redcar
Mommanby

Fipon
Alre

Freaston
Hemswarth

Bell Lana
Mewstaad Green
Park Hill

Foxhills

Hasland Hall

Valley
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South Yorkshire Pension Fund (SYPF)

Outwood Academy City Carfion
Shafton Adwick
Danum

Outwood Primary Academy Darfizid Littleworth Grange
Woodlands

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Thir Teachers® Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Schamea Regulations 2014, Membership is automatic for fulktime teachers in academies
and, from 1 January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change
of contract, althowgh they are able to apt out.

The TPS is an enfunded scheme and members coniribute on & "pay a5 you go° basis — these contributions
abong with those made by employers are credited to the Excheguer, Retirement and other pension baneafits
are paid by public funds provided by Parliament

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, uging normal acluarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published
by HM Treasury every 4 years, The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions, Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of futune costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was camed out as at 31 March 2016, The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019, The key elements of the
valuation and subsaquent consultation are:

amployar confribution rates sat al 23.68% of panslonabla pay {including & 0.08% administration
lewvy]
total scheme Babifities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
senvice to the effective date of £218, 100 millicn and nofional assats (estimated future contributions
tegether with the notional investiments held ai the valuation date) of £196, 100 milkon, gving a
nofional past service deficit of 222,000 millian

«  the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is usad to determine the notional investment return, The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of eamings. The rate of real eamings growih is assumed to be 2.2%, Tha
assurmed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4. 45%.
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The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023,

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £14 524k (2020: £13,132K)

py af the valuation report and

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The academy frust has set out above the information available on the schema.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held In separate trustee-administered
funds. The fotal contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2021 was £7 310k (2020: £6,373k), of which
employer's contributions totalled £5.600k (2020: £4,893k) and employees' coniributions totalled £1,710k
{2020: £1,480k). The agreed contribution rates for future years are an average of 19.44% across the Trust
with the minimum being 15.4% and the maximum belng 22.2% for employers and a sliding scale rate of
between 5.5% and 12.5% per cent for employess

Pariiament has agreed, at tha request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event
of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Departrment for Education. The guarantes came into force on 18 July 2013,

Frincipal actuarial assumptions (average) 2021 2020
Rate of increase in salanes 3.06% 3.20%
Rate of increase for peasions in paymentinflation 2.95% 2.20%
Discount rate for scheme llabilities 1.75% 1.70%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.95% 2.200%
Commutation of penslans ta lump sums 60.00% 50.00%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates

The average assumed life expectations on relirement age 65 ane:

2021 2020
Retiring today
Malas 25 214
Females 24.0 2349
Retiring in 20 years
Males 223 222
Femabas 252 251
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Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Maortality assumption = 1 year increass
Mortality assumption = 1 year decreasa
CPl rate +0.1%

CPI rate -0.1%

The Trust operates within seven local authority pension schemes. The Trust has used one acluary,

Paensions Watch, to prepara the Trusts actuarial pension assels and liabiliies and the sensithaty
assumpiions now aign with the disclosure requirement rates and the impact is shown abowe.

The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:

Equites

Gilts | Gowernment Bonds
Corporate bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid sssets
Ciher

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was:

Amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

Current senice cost

Past servce cost

Interest income

Interest cost

Admin expenses

Total amount recognised in the SOFA

2021 2020
£000 £000
{4,857) (2,760)
5,076 3,849
6,075 4 503
(5,414) (4,020)
3,882 2917
(3,811) (2,865)
2021 2020
£000 £000
79,456 52 544
8,696 7,226
7,056 6,118
7,985 £,652
3,798 3,599
8,683 10,058
115,673 86,197
20,882 (2,326)
2021 2020
E£000 £000
12,169 10,423
- (228)
(1,538) (1.593)
2,842 2,872
120 104
13,502 11,578
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Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2024 2020

£000 E000
At 1 September 164,745 152 564
Conversion of academy trusts 4,841 -
Transfesred in on exsting academies joining the academy trust - 3377
Current senvice cost 12,169 10,423
Interest cost 2,842 2872
Employee confributions 1,710 1,480
Actuarial loss / (gain) M,226 {3,792)
Benefits paid {1,935) (1,851)
Past senice cost . (228)
At 31 August 215,598 164,745
Changes in the fair value of academy trust's share of scheme assets:

20 2020

£000 £000
At 1 September 86,196 B2.318
Corversion of academy frusts 3,340 -
Transferred in on exsting academies joining the academy frust - 1,888
Interest income 1,539 1,583
Actuarial gain 19,343 {3.919)
Employar contributions 5,600 4, 893
Employee contribuions 1,710 1,480
Benefits paid (1,935) {1,951)
Admin Fess {120} (104)
At 31 August 115,673 86,197

+1 Ralated party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn fram local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustess
have an interest. All fransactions invelving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the
requirements of the Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all agreements made on or after 1 April 2019
and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal
procurement procadures relating to connected and related party transactions. The following related party
transactions took place in the financial period.
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Supplier Service received

Outwood Grange Sendces Lid Recharge costs from OGSL to Trust
Confederation of School Trusts Subscription fees

WSETEC

Balances owed at 31 August 2021 within creditors

WEETEC

Customer Service provided
Cutwiood Grange Senvices Lid Gift Aid donation

Cutwood Grange Sendces Lid Cther income from OIE
Faloon Education Acadamies Trust

WSETEL Recharge of imoices paid

Balances owed at 31 August 2021 within deblors

Outwood Grange Sendces Lid
Falcon Education Academies Trust

WSETEC

2021

15

20
£000

2021
£000

owhd B

2021
£000
66

2020
£0:00
id

2020
£00D

277

15

bartyn Cliver k= on the board of Confederation of School Trusts, formerly FASNA. This is an unpaid, non

axecutive position.

David Earmnshaw and Chris Daizell are Trustees of Falcon Education Academies Trust. During 2020/21
Cutwoad Grange Acadamias Trust provided education services to Falcon and were remunerated at cost for

these services,
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Twia Trust employees are the only Trustees of Wakefield South East Training and Enterprise Centre
(WSETEC) with Outwood Academy Hemsworth being the only partner school. WSETEC is a charity set
up to further education in the Wakefield area by making use of the large facilities lsased to R on a
peppercom lease from the Local Autheority. Previously WSETEC Trustess also included two employees
from Minsthorpe Community College, alse a partner schoal. In 2018/20 Minsthorpe withdrew fom this
mangement and both Minsthorpe employees resigned as Trustees. Outwood Academy Hamsworth
continued the commitment of partner schools to cower operational casts of WSETEC in order that it
remains a going concem. In relation to this and the Trust's use of the bullding the Trust paid £15k to
WSETEC in 2020/21. In 2021/22 the Trust and WSETEC intend to complete thair review of the existing
arrangamants and options for future use of the WSETEC buildings.

32 Agency arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the accounting
perad ending 31 August 2021 the academy frust received £232k of funds (2020: £208k). £326k (2020;
E183k) was disbursed from the fund. An amount of E248k (2020: £342k) is included in other creditors relating
to undistributed funds that is repayable ta the ESFA

Outwood Grange Services Limited acts as an agent in respect of grant funds from the National College of
Teaching and Learning (NCTL) for school to school support services and maths hub projects. |n the year
ended 31 August 2021 the trust received Enil of income and disparsed Enil with Enil recognised as income in
the GOFA. Anamount of E30k is included in other creditors relating to undistributed profits.

33  Conversion of new academy into the trust

Unrestricted Restricted H“gﬂ; Total funds
funds funds funds
Outwood Academy Hasland Hall
EDOD £000 £000 E£000
Tangible fixed assats
Leasehold land and bulldings - - 12,573 12,573
Computer Equipment - - - -
Cagh in bank and in hand 660 = - 660
Pensions
Pensions — pension scheme assats - 1,870 - 1,870
Fensions - pensian scheme fabilities - (2,004) - {2,004)
Net assets 660 {134) 12,573 13,009
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST

Outwood Primary Academy Woodlands

Tangible fixed assetis
Leasehold land and buildings
Equipment
Computer Equipment
Cash in bank and in hand
Pensions
Pensians — pension scheme assets
Pengions — pension scheme tiabilities
Net assafis

Outwood Primary Academy Alne

Tanglible fixed assats
Leasehold land and buildings
Compuier Equipmant
Cash in bank and in hand
Penslions
Pensions — pansion schema assels
Pansions — pension schema liabilities
Mat assats

2021

Restricted

""'"T““ o S M KT

unds funds

funds

£000 £000 £000 E000

] . 2,657 2,657

N . 13 13

: ; 43 43

56 . ] 58

) 1,096 ; 1,096

- (2,180) - {2,190)

56 (1,004) 2.713 1,675
Restricted

“"""h“:'d: “"’m fixed assat  Total funds
funds

£000 £000 £000 £000

; . 434 934

] . 17 17

- 374 ; 374

» (B47) - (847)

- (273) 951 78
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34 Teaching school trading account

Incorme

Direct Income
DfE § ESFA grants
Ceher incomea

Other Income

Fundraising and ather frading actvibes
Total Income
Expenditure

Direct costs

DHrect staff cosls

Education supplies

Security and Transport

Ottvar direct costs

Total direct costs

Other costs
Support staff cosls
Technology cosis
Recruitment and support
Siaff development
Rant and Rates
Catering

Marketing Costs
Ciher support costs
Share of governance
Total other costs

Total Expenditure

Transfers between funds excleding cepraciabon
Surplus/{Deficit) from all sources

Teaching school balances at 1 September 2020
Teaching school balances at 31 August 2021

2020/21 2020021 2020121 201920
£000 £000 £000 £OD0
LNirtr e Rowstricted Total funds Talal funds
funds lunds

40 1.255 1,295 1,128
4148 B4 483 411
T = 70 21
529 1,319 1,848 1,580
164 410 574 419
- g 8 29

. 1 1 14
[515] 701 ek 530
240 1,120 1,350 442
132 121 253 2484
. 4 4 2

it 1 1 -

i e & 1

- 1 11 51

L 5 - 15

- 4 4 T
167 a2 219 234
- 3] 7] k|
204 1849 498 568
529 1,318 1,848 1,580

The national Teaching Schools programme ended in August 2021. The Trust is planning to continue teacher
development via the School Led Development Trust. See page 11 for further details,

Page Th of 77




OUTWOOD GRANGE ACADEMIES TRUST
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST

35  Events after the and of the reporting period

There are no events (o dsclose after the end of the reporting period.

38 Principal Subsidiaries

Outwood Grange Services Limited
Subsidiary Name

Company registration number

Basis of control

Equity Sharehalding %

Total assais as at 31 August 2021
Total Eabilities as at 31 August 2021
Taotal equity a5 a1 31 August 2021

Turnover far the year ended 31 August 2021
Expenditura for the year ended 31 August 2021
it ald danation

Result for the year ended 31 August 2021

Outwood Grange Services Limited
07844668

100% owned
100%
2020121 201820
£000 £000
583 523
(583) (523)
1,848 1,560
{1,782) {1,553)
{66} {7)
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